Wiltshire Council

~——"- Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting: WESTBURY AREA BOARD

Place: Bratton Jubilee Hall, Melbourne Street, Bratton, Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13
4RW

Date: Thursday 7 April 2016

Time: 7.00 pm

Including parishes of Bratton, Coulston, Dilton Marsh, Edington, Heywood and Westbury

The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public.
The chairman will try to ensure that everyone who wishes to speak will have the
opportunity to do so.

If you have any requirements that would make your attendance at the meeting easier,
please contact your Democratic Services Officer.

Refreshments and networking opportunities will be available from 6:30pm.

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Roger Bishton (Democratic Services
Officer), on 01225 713 035 or email roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk

All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at
www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115.

Wiltshire Councillors

Clir Russell Westbury -
Hawker West 01373 822275 russell.hawker@wiltshire.gov.uk
Clir David Westbury 01373 823605 e -
Jenkins North 07941 201637 david.jenkins2@uwiltshire.gov.uk
Clir Gordon King Westbury 01373 822650 , I
(Chairman) East 07454 274266 gordon.king@wiltshire.gov.uk
Clir Jerry
Wickham Ethandune 01380 870476 jerry.wickham@wiltshire.gov.uk
. ; 07980 701617
(Vice-Chairman)

Page 1


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’'s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv. At the start of the meeting, the
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request.

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details
above.

Page 2


http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/

Items to be considered

Time

Chairman's Welcome and Introductions

Apologies for Absence

Minutes (Pages 1 - 14)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2016.
Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations
granted by the Standards Committee.

Chairman's Announcements (Pages 15 - 16)

To note the following items for information:-

e Health and Wellbeing Groups
e Clean for the Queen — The Chairman will make an
announcement at the meeting.

Health and Wellbeing Groups

Sue Geary, Head of Commissioning - Community Services, will
make a presentation on Health and Wellbeing Groups and answer
any questions.

The Community Engagement Manager will explain the process for
the appointment of an Older People’s Champion.

Partner and Community Updates (Pages 17 - 40)

To receive updates from our key partners. Some reports have been
received and are included in the pack.

Wiltshire Police

Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service

Local Youth Network

BA13+ Community Area Partnership
Healthwatch Wiltshire

Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group
Town and Parish Councils

Local Highways Investment Fund 2014-2020 (Pages 41 - 60)

To agree a proposed road resurfacing and maintenance programme
with a list of proposed local schemes for 2016/17. Peter Binley,
Head of Highways Asset Management & Commissioning will be
attending to present his report.

Page 3




10.

11.

Community Area Transport Group (Pages 61 - 66)

To receive the notes of the Westbury Community Area Transport
Group meeting held on 18 March 2016 and to consider the
recommendations set out in the notes.

Westbury Community Area Grants 2015/2016 (Pages 67 - 68)

A report by the Community Engagement Manager is attached
providing an update on grant funding applications from 1 April 2015
to 31 March 2016.

Future Meeting Dates

The next meeting of the Westbury Area Board will take place on:
Thursday 2 June 2016 at The Laverton, Westbury, BA13 3EN
Future Meeting Dates
e Thursday 4 August 2016 at Hawkeridge and Heywood
Village Hall,
5A Church Road, Heywood, BA13 4LP.

e Thursday 6 October 2016 at The Laverton, Westbury, BA13
3EN.

Page 4




Wiltsriire Council

~———>_ Where everybody matters

MINUTES

Meeting: WESTBURY AREA BOARD
Place: The Laverton Hall, Bratton Rd, Westbury BA13 3EN
Date: 4 February 2016

Start Time: 7.00 pm
Finish Time: 9.20 pm

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:

Roger Bishton (Senior Democratic Services Officer), Tel: 01225 713035 or (e-mail)
roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Papers available on the Council’'s website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

In Attendance:

Wiltshire Councillors
Clir Russell Hawker, ClIr David Jenkins, Clir Gordon King (Chairman) and
Clir Jerry Wickham (Vice Chairman)

Wiltshire Council Officers

Liam Cripps, Community Engagement Officer
Roger Bishton, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Phoebe Brazier, Community Youth Officer

Nicole Smith, Head of Housing Operations & People

Town and Parish Councillors

Westbury Town Council — Clir David Bradshaw, Clir David Tout, Keith Harvey (Town
Clerk)

Bratton Parish Council — Clir John Bartram,

Coulston Parish Council

Dilton Marsh Parish Council — Clir Alison Irving

Edington Parish Council — Clir Mike Swabey

Heywood Parish Council — ClIr Keith Youngs

Partners

Wiltshire Police — Inspector James Brain, Carolyn Deverall
Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service

Wiltshire NHS

BA13+ Community Area Partnership — Carole King, Phil McMullen

Total in attendance: 41

Page 1 of 13

Page 1


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Agenda

Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision

Item No.
1. Chairman's Welcome and Introductions
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Westbury Area Board.
2. Apologies for Absence
An apology for absence was received from Michael Franklin, Partnerships &
Community Engagement Manager, Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service.
3. Minutes
Resolved:
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 10 December 2015 were
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
4. Matters Arising

. Child Poverty At the last meeting of the Area Board, the Chairman
reported the success of a Workshop on the attainment of disadvantaged
children, which had been held at Matravers School on 13 October 2015.
Following on from this an action plan was being drawn up which so far
included the establishment of cooking clubs, information technology
workshops together with other leisure and recreational activities.
Champions had been appointed to explore the possibility of other
activities which might be popular and then to liaise with the Chairman
and Community Engagement Manager to take forward.

e Dilton Marsh — Weed Killing A the last meeting, Clir JA Moody from
Dilton Marsh Parish Council referred to the poor maintenance of roads
particularly in the Dilton Marsh area and the amount of weeds ha needed
clearing. The Area Board requested that details of a weed Kkilling
programme be made available at the next meeting.

Wiltshire Council was reviewing its services as it shaped the future of its
highway programme from April 2016. Following feedback from town and
parish councils, part of that programme woiuld be reintroducing the
Parish Steward Scheme. There would be 18 stewards appointed serving
their own group of parish and town councils in the county. It would
replace the community days scheme where a group of officers provided
one day's work of activities within an extended time period.

Under the new scheme, parishes would have regular visits for minor
works providing a much more frequent service. The parish stewards
would report issues and undertake repairs and maintenance themselves,
meaning they would be a ‘one stop and done' service. The stewards
would help prioritise the needs of their patch including roads, pathways,
drainage and verge maintenance. Their remit could include painting

Page 2 of 13

Page 2




railings, highways strimming and undertaking minor pothole repairs.

Over the next few months, parish and town councils would be advised of
the new arrangements and attendance programmes.

People who wished to report a highways issue could do so using the
MyWiltshire App, by the council website or by calling 0300 456 0105.

NHS Health Checks At its meeting on 10 December 2015, the Westbury
Area Board received the Chairman’s Announcement about NHS Health
Checks.

However, during discussion some members noticed that it was stated that
everyone between the ages of 40 and 74, who had not been diagnosed
with certain conditions or was otherwise ineligible, was invited every five
years to have a free NHS Health Check. They asked that an enquiry be
made if those over the age of 75 years were likewise eligible and, if not,
why?

The NHS health check was intended for people up to the age of 74,
invitations being sent during the month/year of their 40, 45, 50 etc.
birthday. Surgery’s already offered over 75’s regular health checks (in
some cases annually), and that was why the 5 yr invitation process
stopped at 74.

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman made the following announcements:-

Wiltshire Passenger Transport Review Wiltshire Council was
undertaking a review of Wiltshire Council supported bus services as part of
a wider review of all areas of Wiltshire Council’s passenger transport remit.

The Council had already completed a pre consultation assessment,
(details can be found via this link
(www.wiltshire.gov.uk/localtransportplan3).

A broader consultation was now taking place to hear the views of
residents. The Council had made no decisions and would like to see how
far members of the public agreed or disagreed with the presented
options, or make alternative suggestions. Consultation documents could
be viewed from the 11 January 2016 on the Council’'s consultation portal
http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal.

Hard copies of the consultation material including questionnaires were
available at local libraries and at main council offices from the 11 January

Page 3 of 13

Page 3



http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/mywilts
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/localtransportplan3
http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal

2016. Questionnaires were also available on buses operating a journey
that was funded by Wiltshire Council, and could be sent out on request.

The consultation will be open until to 5pm on the 4 April 2016.

Wiltshire Online Programme - Broadband Update The
announcement provided:

- An overview on coverage to date

- Detailed information on the new Universal Service Commitment scheme
- Update on Phase 1 & Phase 2

- Signpost to website for further information

Full details were available to see at www.wiltshireonline.org

Partner and Community Updates

The Area Board received the following updates from key partners:-

Wiltshire Police Inspector James Brain, Community Policing Team
Inspector, Trowbridge & Warminster, introduced and explained the Police
report based on what was happening in the Westbury Community Area, full
details appeared in the agenda pack..

He explained that the Community Policing Team pilot had now completed
its 10 week mark and the general feedback was positive. The Chief
Constable has stated that this ‘one team’ approach, which was being
further developed, was the most effective way to deliver local Policing and
he had instigated a scoping exercise with a view of rolling out this Policing
model across the entire Force Area later in 2016.

Inspector Brain reported that Sergeant Pete Sparrow, his Community
Policing Team Deputy, had moved to another area of the Force as Acting
Inspector and had been replaced by Sergeant Louis McCoy, who had
previously worked in the Chippenham area and had 13 years of Policing
experience in a variety of roles across Wiltshire Police.

The Chairman introduced and welcomed Carolyn Deverall, Out of Court
Disposal Manager, who was attending to explain Restorative Justice. She
explained that the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner had funded
the post of Restorative Justice Co-ordinator and the Wiltshire model was
still being developed. However, to date there had been some positive
outcomes with some conversations having taken place with both victims
and offenders. It was stressed that any conversations with either party
were carried out on a purely voluntary basis.

Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service The update report was received and
noted.

The Chairman introduced and welcomed Chief Fire Officer Darren Gunter,

Page 4 of 13

Page 4



http://www.wiltshireonline.org/

currently CFO for Dorset Fire & Rescue Service but Chief Fire Officer for
the new combined Dorset & Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service from 1 April
2016. Mr Gunter was attending the area board meeting in order to explain
the new service.

Mr Gunter illustrated his talk by showing a short film entitled Changing &
Saving Lives...Together. He explained that the public would not notice any
change in the service provided except for the name. Both services already
did more than just put out fires and undertook a range of prevention
activities. The Service intended to:-

e work in some key areas, such as identifying those people who might be
cold in their homes during winter and support and signpost them to
other agencies to take action.

e work with public health partners to reduce avoidable illnesses.

e work with families and individual young people to support them in making
safer and healthier choices.

This was reflected in the following four priorities;

1) Help individuals to make safer and healthier choices.
2) Protect individuals and the environment from harm.
3) Be there when needed.

4) Make every penny count.

It was noted that a new safety centre was to be provided in Swindon and it
was suggested that this might be better strategically provided to cover the
whole area to be covered by the combined authority in or near Salisbury.
Mr Gunter informed the meeting that there already existed a safety centre
in Bournemouth and he hoped that it might be possible to provide an
additional centre in Salisbury to cover the Trowbridge & Salisbury area.

Mr Gunter also explained that the government had moved responsibility for
the Fire & Rescue Service to the Home Office from the Department for
Communities & Local Government. The move would deliver the
government’'s manifesto commitment to deliver greater joint working
between the police and fire service. It would pave the way for improvement
in local fire and policing by providing clear leadership, supporting greater
collaboration and delivering value for money for taxpayers. It would also
allow the government to share good practice more effectively on areas
such as procurement and prevention. The government recently consulted
on proposals to enable Police and Crime Commissioners to take on greater
responsibility for fire services at local level.

The Chairman thanked Mr Gunter for his interesting and informative

Page 5 of 13

Page 5




presentation.

BA13+ Community Area Partnership An update report which was
received and noted.

Healthwatch Wiltshire An update report was received and noted.

Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group An update report was received
and noted.

Town and Parish Councils

(a) Westbury Town Council Clir David Bradshaw, Mayor, reported on
recent work and activities carried out by Westbury Town Council, which
included:

- Setting the town precept for 2016-17 at £394,427 (Band D charge
£87.75), this being the total money the town council receives to
spend on its services. This represented an increase of 26p per week
on the tax for a band D property.

- The Council’s Delegation of Services Working Group were currently
in discussions with Wiltshire Council with regard to taking over
responsibility for certain services, such as allotments in Queen’s
Road and flower beds in the town centre. The Town Council had
agreed to accept the transfer of the public toilets in High Street and
Warminster Road by a seven year lease with effect from 1 April
2016.

- The Town Council was currently advertising for two town caretakers
to supplement the services provided by Wiltshire Council. Their
remit would be to litter pick in the town centre, keep footpaths clear
of litter, dog mess and cutting back brambles, cleaning road signs
and bus shelters and some weeding and small maintenance tasks.

- Arrangements were being made for the beacon on the White Horse
to be lit on the Queen’s Birthday, 21 April 2016, by the Lord
Lieutenant of Wiltshire.

- It was reported that the road from Hawkeridge Road to the end of
The Ham to the entrance of the West Wilts Trading Estate would be
closed from 29 February to 29 April 2016 for roadworks, the
alternative route being through the Trading Estate.

(b) Dilton Marsh Parish Council Clir Alison Irving reported that to
celebrate the Queen’s Birthday there would be a community picnic on
the playing field. The Parish Council would be contributing with other
parishes in the area to taking over responsibility for the Speed Indicator
Device (SID).

Page 6 of 13

Page 6




(c) Bratton Parish Council Clir John Bartram reported that plans were
being developed to celebrate the Queen’s Birthday on 21 April. Bratton
Parish Council would also be contributing to the transfer of
responsibility for the SID and was participating in the development of
the Community Emergency Plan.

(d) Edington Parish Council Clir Mike Swabey stated that Edington
Parish Council was also involved in the development of the Community
Emergency Plan and was participating in the process of compiling a
Neighbourhood Plan.

Wiltshire Wildlife Trust Ltd Jessica Thimbleby, from the Wiltshire Wildlife
Trust Ltd reported that Wiltshire Wildlife Trust Education Officers had continued
running their waste workshops at primary schools in Westbury. In November
the team spent the day at Matravers School running an Eco Dragons Den which
asked students to think about local environmental challenges and develop an
idea, campaign or prototype to help resolve the issue - winning ideas included a
machine to help with dog fouling and a campaign to clean-up local rivers.

The Trust had run sessions for local Rainbows, Brownies, Cubs and Guides
helping them achieve badges by completing activities such as making bird
feeders and other items out of waste. Staff from the Waste & Recycling Team at
Wiltshire Council joined Wildlife Trust's Waste Team and knocked on 559 doors
in Westbury to answer resident’s questions about recycling and to make sure
they knew what could be recycled in their black box and blue-lidded bin. A
clothes swap was run at Suave and also a Christmas Jumper making
workshop.

As the project was due to an end in Westbury, the Trust would be launching a
cotton bag competition, sponsored by Hills, which would give each primary
school pupil in the town a bag on which to design an environmental message.
The Trust would also be running a Spring Seed event at half-term on 18
February 2-4pm in the library, making seed bombs among other planting fun.
The Trust was working with local groups to complete the wall-hanging and
writing a toolkit for community groups to use to encourage recycling and
reducing waste in their area.

Delivery and Demand of New Housing

Nicole Smith, Head of Housing Operations, Wiltshire Council, made a
presentation in which she explained the demand for affordable housing in the
Westbury Community Area.

She explained that national housing policy was to:

¢ Increase owner-occupation including low cost options
e Make best use of existing social housing stock
e Reduce burden on public sector (housing benéefit bill)

Page 7 of 13

Page 7




e Increase supply of new homes
e Promote independent living in the community

Wiltshire’s priorities were:

Ensuring there are a range of housing options available to meet needs
Promoting home ownership housing

Enabling provision of homes for the most vulnerable

To help people to achieve independence and choice enabling them to live
at home for longer

« To improve the quality and make best use of existing stock

The following would be used to assist in assessing the need for additional
housing:

The core strategy

Strategic Housing Market Assessment
Town and parish surveys
Under-occupation and overcrowding data
Demographic trends & census updates
Existing stock information

Re-let supply

Housing register

It was pointed out that Westbury Community Area had, at 13.3% of all
households, average levels of social rented accommodation compared with the
Wiltshire average of 14.7%. The current highest demand was for one-bedroom
affordable homes (28 households) and the next highest was for two-bedroom
homes (20 household) which had been constant in the last few years.

Nicole Smith explained that the next steps were:

« Commissioning research at community area level

» Developing housing strategy & agreeing priorities

*  Work with local communities & partners to understand local need and
deliver new homes

« Consider options to increase choices for those not able to meet needs in
open market

» Respond to national policy changes

Update on Tarmac Site

The Chairman introduced Jonathan Toyne, Senior Estates Manager and David
Daniels, PR Consultant working for Tarmac where were attending to explain
Tarmac’s proposals for the demolition of its former cement works to the north of
Westbury.

Mr Toyne explained that in September 2015 Tarmac announced that it wished to

Page 8 of 13

Page 8




10.

demolish the Company’s former cement works at Westbury. The demolition
activities, as explained in the submission to Wiltshire would be as follows:-

e Early demolition of all redundant production facilities associated with the
former cement works phased around the ongoing local distribution of
cement from the site.

e Targeted water sprays and water curtains to be used to contain dust
emissions.

e Hazardous materials to be removed under controlled conditions in
advance of demolition commencing.

e Use of pulverising and shearing techniques rather than impact equipment
to minimise noise.

e Demolition of the chimney by controlled use of explosives.

Mr Toyne pointed out that the demolition of the chimney would take place
towards the end of the six month programme and would possibly take place in
July or August 2016. It would be necessary to liaise with Network Rail as to
precisely when the demolition could take place bearing in mind the very close
proximity of the main railway line from London to Devon and Cornwall.

It was noted that a meeting would be held at The Laverton, Westbury on 17
March in which the proposals would be fully explained to the public.

Mr Toyne went on to explain that it was planned to publicise the actual
demolition of the chimney and hoped that it could be regarded as a special
event with possibly a celebrity or a school child activating the demolition.

The Chairman, on behalf of the Area Board, thanked Jonathan Toyne and David
Daniels for attending the meeting to explain the proposals.

Legacy Campaigns Presentation 2016

Liam Cripps, Area Engagement Manager, informed the Area Board of the legacy
campaigns planned for 2016.

They included:

* Clean for The Queen — national campaign to be launched in March and
end in May.

« The Queen’s 90 birthday celebrations

» Cycling and walking events including Cycle Wiltshire

* Big Pledge — make a difference to your health and wellbeing — be part of
the Road to Rio Challenge

* The Olympic and Paralympic Games in Rio de Janeiro

There would be celebrations across the UK throughout the year including a

Page 9 of 13

Page 9




11.

concert, birthday parade and giant street party. Communities all over the country
would be holding street parties to coincide with one taking place on The Mall on
Sunday 12 June. In preparation for the street parties there would be Clean for
The Queen tidy up of local areas, which would involve litter picking around
community areas.

Westbury residents were all encouraged to hold a street party and organise a
Clean for The Queen day - there were guides available with all the information
and advice needed to get started. This year the Olympics and Paralympics was
due to take place in Rio de Janeiro, Brazil throughout August and September.
There were a number of ways to get involved and support this global sporting
event in Wiltshire.

School games would be held across the county. Individual and multiple schools
would be putting on outdoor athletic events for their children, interschool games
allowing children from different schools to compete against each other, meet
new people and have fun doing sport. Wiltshire Council would once again be
handing out grants to up and coming athletes in the county through Funding
Future Olympians and Paralympians grant scheme. The annual fundraising
dinner would be taking place in March, and the public was being encouraged to
donate a raffle or auction prize for this fantastic cause.

Cycle Wiltshire would once again take place in Salisbury on 7t and 8" May and
the event village would have a Rio theme for this year. Members of the public
were being encouraged to participate in the sportive or enjoy a great family fun
day out at the event Big Pledge ‘Road to Rio’. The Big Pledge 2016 was
focussed on getting people active and making a difference to their health and
wellbeing. As it is an Olympic year the theme for this year's Big Pledge was
‘Road to Rio’ which would take place from 3 June — 29 July 2016. Participants
would complete varied distances on ‘The Road to Rio’ by walking, swimming,
running or rowing . Entrants could take part as an individual, group or
community, and this year all 18 community areas in Wiltshire would be in
competition to see who could travel the furthest and make it all the way to Rio de
Janeiro.

Liam Cripps explained that key events would be launched within a month and he
appealed for help in organising these events and activities.

Campus Working Group

The Chairman provided a verbal update at the meeting.

It was noted that Clir John Thomson and associate director Laurie Bell recently
visited Westbury to discuss future options for the town, but in particular the
provision of a community hub. Currently, Westbury was not one of the seven
approved campuses, however, having visited the town and looked at the
possible options, Clir Thomson and Laurie Bell agreed that plans to make
improvements to the existing library building to provide a community hub should
be progressed. It was considered that this would deliver a positive interim
solution whilst the neighbourhood plan was developed, which would reflect the

Page 10 of 13

Page 10




12.

13.

regeneration of the town in the context of future development and growth.

Subject to feasibility, the plans for the library would look to include the provision
of flexible community space, an automated system that extended operating
hours and allowed self-access by the local community, the provision of a stair lift
to improve accessibility and redecoration as required. The provision of a new
community hub was supported by Clir John Thomson and he recognised the
need to increase the offer to local residents in Westbury.

The Chairman advised that the plans would be presented at a future area board

meeting and confirmed that parish councils in the Community Area would be
involved in the provision of the community hub.

Development of Youth Activities in the Westbury Community

Phoebe Brazier, Community Youth Officer, presented an update from the Local
Youth Network, which had been circulated with the agenda pack.

Consideration was given to five grant applications for youth activities.
Resolved:
(1) To approve the following applications:-

e Grant 196: The full £5,000 to Westbury Youth Football Club for the
grounds maintenance project.

e Grant 213: The full £1,323.63 to Bratton Youth Club foe engagement
materials.

eGrant 235: The full £5,000 to Westbury Youth Club for start-up
resources, DBS checks & training.

e Grant 234: The full £3,044.85 to Matravers Combined Cadet Force for
equipment.

(2) To not approve the following application, on the grounds that it did
not qualify for grant aid:-

eGrant 78: The full £4,800 to All Instruments for instruments and
workshops.

Community Area Grants

Consideration was given to a report by the Community Engagement Manager in
which councillors were asked to consider funding from the 2015/16 Area Board
Grants Budget, all of which met the grants criteria. After receiving brief

Page 11 of 13

Page 11




statements from the applicants giving reasons for the requests:
Resolved:
(1) Application 1668 - 656 Squadron Association

To refuse the application for a grant of £835.00 to upgrade the 656
Squadron Association website on the grounds that, although the
application meets the grants criteria and although the website is
administered in Westbury, there is limited direct relevance to the local area
and therefore the impact for the community could not be justified.

(2) Application 1678 — West Wilts Society of Model Engineers

To approve a grant of £850.00 towards a new Pillar drill for West Wilts
Society of Model Engineers training workshop.

(3) Application 1575 — Dilton Marsh Local History Society

To approve a grant of £1,000.00 towards a project to map the timeline of
the village history.

(4) Application 1717 — Westbury Shed

To approve a grant of £957.00 towards the cost of building a shed on
allotments off Queen’s Road, BA13 3NN for Westbury Men’s Shed, a local
group to promote general wellbeing and healthy lifestyles for retired and
other men who were looking to use their time constructively and enjoyably.

(5) Application 1716 - Westbury Shed Start Up Package

To approve a grant of £962.55 towards the cost of setting up a Westbury
Men’s Shed, on the proviso that the scheme is rolled forward and financed
from the Area Board Grants Budget for 2016/17.

The Chairman reminded the meeting that at the last meeting initial consideration
was given to the following delegation:

That in respect of urgent matters that may arise, the Community Engagement
Manager, following consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the
Area Board, may authorise expenditure to support community projects from the
delegated budget of up to £5,000 in total between meetings of an Area Board.
The decision and reasons why it was considered urgent will be reported to the
next meeting of the Area Board.

Whilst Members had some support for the proposal, some felt that the Community
Engagement Manager should consult with all four members of the Westbury Area Board
rather than just the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman.

Page 12 of 13

Page 12




14.

15.

The Area Board had agreed to defer consideration of this proposal until the next meeting
to allow further discussion and consultation to take place.

After some discussion,
Resolved:

That in respect of urgent matters that may arise, the Community
Engagement Manager, following consultation with the four Members of the
Area Board, may authorise expenditure to support community projects
from the delegated budget of up to £5,000 in total between meetings of an
Area Board. The decision and reasons why it was considered urgent will
be reported to the next meeting of the Area Board.

Future Meeting Dates

It was noted that the next meeting of the Westbury Area Board would be held on
Thursday 7 April 2016 at Bratton Jubilee Hall, Melbourne Street, Bratton, BA13
3EN.

Mr Keith Harvey

The Chairman informed the meeting that Mr Keith Harvey would be retiring as
Clerk to Westbury Town Council with effect from 31 March 2016 and therefore,
this would be the last Area Board meeting that he would be attending in that
capacity.

The meeting wished Mr Harvey every happiness in his retirement and thanked
him warmly for his diligent work and very sound counsel over many years.

Page 13 of 13

Page 13







Agenda Item 5.

Chairman’s Announcements

Subject: Health and Wellbeing Groups

gcf)frﬁg::t Sue Geary (Head of Community Commissioning)
Details: sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk 01225 713922

Health and Wellbeing Group?

The Council is proposing that each Area Board establishes a Health and Well
Being Group. Health and Wellbeing Groups are intended to provide a
community led local forum to facilitate the coordination of joined up services
for older people living within a community area. They are intended to gather
the views of local older people and ensure these views are represented at the
local Area Board. The groups will focus on working with community
commissioners to identify the needs of a local population and support the
development of services that will meet these needs.

What will they be expected to do?

It is anticipated the groups will identify how best to co-ordinate support for
vulnerable people in their area in a way that that is more inclusive than the
current good neighbour service and makes best use of the existing community
capacity.

Each Health and Wellbeing Group will reflect the needs of its local community
and different area boards plans will reflect this however the intention is that
the Health and Wellbeing Group will ensure wellbeing and community
resilience is a key priority for Area Boards and the Group will support
community initiatives.

It is anticipated that Health and Wellbeing Groups will draw on local resources
and assets in order to generate support for local initiatives. Funding previously
used to commission the Good Neighbours Service will be devolved (ring
fenced) to the Area Boards to support local initiatives identified by the Health
and Wellbeing Groups.

Health and Wellbeing groups can respond to local challenges and make the
best use of local assets including local knowledge, resources and voluntary
organisations.

The Council Adult Care Community Commissioners can work closely with
members, customers and key stakeholders to respond effectively to local
needs while coordinating county wide solutions where required.

The groups will promote links between universal services (including leisure

and libraries) and services that support specific customer groups including
older adults or those with a disability.

Page 15


mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk

Chairman’s Announcements
Who would be part of a Health and Wellbeing Group?

This would be decided by each Area Board. It is suggested that the
Community Engagement Manager, the Older Peoples’ Champion, Unitary and
Parish Councillors, CCG Care Coordinators, Healthwatch, Representatives
from the Voluntary Sector should be included.

When can an Area Board commence work on Health and Wellbeing
Groups?

Anytime. A number of Area Boards have already planned meetings to start
their Health Well Being Groups. In approximately 6 /9 months’ time there will
be a review of progress being made to establish these groups and a report
highlighting good examples of the work being undertaken

Further Information
Please contact Sue Geary Head of Community Commissioning at the Council

for further information and support to establish your Health and Well Being
Group.

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 7.

45

CommunityPolicing

One team

WESTBURY AREA BOARD
Thursday 7t April, 2016.

Welcome to the annual report from your Community Policing Team (CPT).

Over the period since our last report, we have been looking at how we can develop our CPT
and have held several staff engagement sessions across the teams. In addition to this, we
have met with a number of community groups and listened to their views. It is clear that
across all the forums we have engaged with, we are all sharing a common goal of “keep me
safe, protect my community”. We are looking at improved ways to communicate via a
number of channels that are open to us, from social media to face to face meetings. We will
continue to balance our resources against the threats, harms and risks in your community,
working in line with our control strategy to address the issues that matter to you. We have
moved away from a statistics lead report but be assured, if it is happening in your
community and affects you, we will tell you.

The end of March will see us entering the pre re-election period for the Police and Crime
Commissioner, also known as purdah. It is important to stress that it is business as usual for
the Wiltshire Police. Your local CPT are apolitical and we are here to work with our
communities to address the issues that are most important to you, as | am sure you will
appreciate it is not for us to comment on the upcoming elections.

Horizon - http://www.wiltshire.police.uk/horizon - 101

| would like to take this opportunity to introduce you to Horizon. Being a victim or witness
of crime can be distressing and traumatic. .

From October 2014, we were given the responsibility for delivering non-specialist services
to victims of crime. Horizon Victim and Witness Care has been established to ensure that
every victim of crime benefits from the best possible integrated support service according to
their needs.

Horizon have been designed to provide the help and support needed relevant information
and advice with links to other partner organisations that can assist you.

feedback@wiltshire.police.uk

Page 17


mailto:feedback@wiltshire.police.uk
http://www.wiltshire.police.uk/horizon

Horizon Victim and Witness Care is a new team of police staff which will help to provide a
co-ordinated, consistent end-to-end service for victims and witnesses. This is from their first
point of contact with Wiltshire Police, through the whole criminal justice process.

Working with partner agencies, Horizon will provide an enhanced service to support victims
and witnesses when they need it most.

How can they help?

¢ A dedicated Victim and Witness Care Officer to victims of crime identified as most
vulnerable

e Support and guidance throughout the criminal investigation process

¢ Simplified process for victims

o Greater level of co-ordinated end-to-end care for victims who need it most

e Aschedule of contact between the victim and Wiltshire Police - victims will be able to
say when and how they wish to be contacted

¢ Signposting to relevant national and local services where appropriate

e Improved quality of outcomes for victims and witnesses, working closely with key
partner agencies

o If you require further practical and emotional help, we can refer you on to Victim
Support

The victims and witnesses eligible for an enhanced service are:

e Vulnerable victims

¢ Intimidated victims

o Persistently targeted victims
e Victims of serious crime

These victims will be allocated a dedicated Victim Care Officer who will conduct a detailed
assessment of their needs.

The Victim Care Officer will provide a single point of contact for the victim or witness to
receive information and updates on their case. Victim Care Officers will agree a schedule of
contact with the victim and be able to signpost them to partner agencies and more
specialist local and national services when appropriate, such as Wiltshire Bobby Van Trust.

Wiltshire Control Strategy

We are continuing to base our Policing activities on the control strategy and working with
the 4 P’s, Prevent, Pursue, Protect and Prepare. Under this strategy we are looking to
maintain our consistent approach to addressing the threat, harm and risk that causes the
greatest harm to your communities and this is a daily evolving situation that requires a
degree of fluidity. We have chosen not to include the diagram setting out our control
strategy in this report but | need to emphasis that this is key in how we go about our daily
business. A cross cutting theme of the control strategy is our young people and those who
are more vulnerable and need safeguarding. In addition, those who are victims of domestic
abuse are all in deserving need of a professional response and support. Our control strategy

feedback@wiltshire.police.uk

Page 18


mailto:feedback@wiltshire.police.uk

meets with Horizon here and works together to support those in need and focus our
energies and resources in the most productive direction.

Community Messaging

Below is a link to Chief Constable Mike Veales monthly column which was posted onto the
Community Messaging forum https://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/ . This highlights the areas
recently covered in our previous community reports. | would encourage you all to sign up to
the Community Messaging as it is a key component of how Wiltshire Police are looking to
engage with our communities. This month we have seen bulletins around action fraud, child
sexual exploitation, and the force bravery awards as well a number of witness appeals.

https://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/da/140468/Chief Constable Mike Veales monthly col
umn_ March.html

As always, we welcome any feedback that you may have and it is important to hear your
views in how we can find the balances and address the issues that affect your communities.
Please continue to leave your feedback at feedback@wiltshire.police.uk

ere

Local Crimes.
There has been a rise in Non dwelling burglaries and theft from motor vehicles
across the area. The majority have involved properties and vehicles being
insecure and therefore would encourage the public to lock and secure their
items. Investigations are continuing but at present no arrests have been made.

For a detailed breakdown of the crime in your area visit...
https://www.police.uk/wiltshire/

James Brain
Community Policing Team Inspector

Trowbridge & Warminster

feedback@wiltshire.police.uk

Page 19


mailto:feedback@wiltshire.police.uk
https://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/
https://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/da/140468/Chief_Constable_Mike_Veales_monthly_column__March.html
https://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/da/140468/Chief_Constable_Mike_Veales_monthly_column__March.html
mailto:feedback@wiltshire.police.uk
https://www.police.uk/wiltshire/




Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service
Westbury Fire Station activity 1/1/16 to 14/3/16.

The Westbury crew responded to 47 incidents from 1st January 2016 to the 14t
March 2016.

These included 2 domestic property fires, 1 started in a washing machine and 1 as a
result of unattended food in a grill pan.

A fire in a car spray paint booth required 4 fire engines and a turntable ladder to
attend.

2 Road Traffic collisions.
Several responses to automatic fire alarms sounding.

The Westbury crew and appliances also supported responses to 2 serious house
fires in the Devizes area.

The station management team have been actively recruiting new firefighters and
have 3 new team members undergoing their initial training.

Andy Green
Station Manager

Page 21






Local Youth Network Update March 2016

Phoebe Brazier leaves employment with Wiltshire Council on the 24" March to
pursue a new career in childcare. Despite a business case being put forward, with
the current financial status, the post of Community Youth Officer in the Westbury
area will remain part time for the present.

| would like to thank Phoebe on behalf of the youth of Westbury for all that she has
done as a youth worker over the years.

The new youth club is unfortunately not up and running yet. It will require at least two
adults with relevant security checks and basic training to oversee. With the
departure of Phoebe, this has delayed things and | am now in the process of
recruiting volunteers to help out. We have two or three who can hopefully give some
time but if anyone knows of anyone else, please send them my way. Leigh Park
Community Centre has now been able to offer both slots on a Wednesday which will
hopefully make things easier.

From the start of the Community Led Model, Westbury Community Area had £34000
in Local Youth Network Funding to April 2016. The underspend is £3670 which is
being rolled forward to the new financial year. The LYN funding for the new financial

year, is currently unknown.

Project = Amount
Expenditure Recipient cost awarded
Other Youth All Instruments Ltd YP music session 8 Feb 2015 £80.00 £80.00
Other Youth Magna Carta(11-19) int transfer £500.00 £500.00
Other Youth Refreshments (petty cash) £5.97 £5.97
Other Youth Refreshments (Petty Cash) £41.01 £41.01
Other Youth Refreshments (petty cash) £8.48 £8.48
Other Youth Magna Carta ribbon (p cash) £27.00 £27.00
Other Youth Magna Carta printing(petty cash) £8.33 £8.33
Other Youth Magna Carta board(petty cash) £8.66 £8.66
Other Youth Magna Carta trees (Petty cash) £30.00 £30.00
Other Youth Magna Carta brackets(petty cash) £10.27 £10.27
Other Youth Magna Carta refreshments(pc) £10.67 £10.67
Other Youth Magna Carta crafts (P cash) £10.00 £10.00
Other Youth Magna Carta hall hire (p cash) £24.00 £24.00
Other Youth Magna Carta materials (P cash) £21.99 £21.99
Other Youth Magna Carta apples (p cash) £34.00 £34.00
Other Youth Aveling Adventure £980.00 £980.00
Other Youth Trow TC Sports Roadshow £540.00 £540.00
LYN funding 68 Squadron West technology proj £1,500.00 £1,500.00
LYN funding West TC youth roller disco £713.00 £713.00
LYN funding Westbury Lions Club (Leos Club) £1,000.00 £1,000.00
LYN funding Westbury Netball Club Ref 198 £1,095.00 £1,095.00
LYN funding Fairfield Farm YC Indoor Fitness Ref 131 £4,785.00 £4,785.00

Page 23

Award date
08/02/2015

00/00/15
00/00/15

00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
00/00/15
13/08/2015
00/00/15
08/10/2015
08/10/2015
08/10/2015
10/12/2015
10/12/2015



LYN funding
LYN funding

AB Expenditure

LYN funding

LYN funding
LYN funding
LYN funding

Fairfield Farm College Outdoor Workshops Ref 129
Fairfield Farm YC Sport Rec. Fac. Ref 128

Westbury TC - Westbury AB Emerg. Planning
Room Hire

Leigh Park Community Centre - Westbury Youth
Club

Matravers School Combined Cadet Force -

Bratton Youth Club - New Equipment

Westbury Youth Football Club - Maintenance
Project

Page 24

£3,296.00
£4,856.00
£54.00

£5,000.00

£3,044.85
£1,323.63
£5,000.00

£3,296.00
£4,856.00
£54.00

£5,000.00

£3,044.85
£1,323.63
£5,000.00

10/12/2015
10/12/2015
09/11/2015

04/02/2016

04/02/2016
04/02/2016
04/02/2016



BA13+ REPORT to WESTBURY AREA BOARD

On behalf of the communities of Bratton, Coulston, Dilton Marsh, Edington, Heywood and of
course Westbury itself, the BA13+ Community Area Partnership seeks to:

Identify the community’s priorities for action

We have established a wide-ranging network of community organisations, groups, clubs,
societies, schools, churches and businesses as well as interested individuals in order to connect
with as many local people as possible. Our regular Partnership Meetings are increasingly
popular, attracting significant speakers and presentations on a wide range of themes, each of
which is in line with our Community Plan.

Reflect local concerns and ideas by tackling them in the Community Plan
We are looking to bring about positive change through a combination of encouraging local
projects and finding ways to raise awareness.

Maintain strong links with town and parish councils and the area board
We engage with councils and other partners to build effective participation, consultation and
community engagement across the community.

Our Community Plan covers the period 2014-2017 and takes into account a wide-ranging list
of the community’s views. This is based around the core themes of the Environment; Health and
Wellbeing; Housing; Transport; Culture & the Arts; Leisure; Children and Young People;
Economy, Jobs and Skills and Community Safety (incorporating Speedwatch, Neighbourhood
Watch, Safe Places, etc;)

We are planning to extend the Community Plan beyond 2017 in the next year and would
VERY much like to hear from individuals, groups, and volunteers with an interest in any
of the above themes. Please contact Phil McMullen, the BA13+ Administrator, for further
information. His email address is ba13plus@outlook.com

The most recent BA13+ Partnership Meeting meanwhile was held on Wednesday 17 February
in the Parish Hall in Westbury. Despite it being a cold, dark and wet night, it was a very well
supported event which updated those present on progress since the last meeting, when guest
speaker Claire Thomas from Alzheimers Support who are a Wiltshire based charity working
with people with Dementia asked what people thought a Dementia Friendly Westbury might look
like. Since the meeting, a date has been set for the The BA13+ Partnership’s relaunch of
Dementia Friendly Westbury, which is taking place on 12" April 10am till 12 at the Leigh Park
Community Centre. The meeting also noted the fact that the Good Neighbour co-ordinator’'s
post is going at the end of March, and thanks was recorded for the great work Lise Griffiths had
done in her time in the role.

The meeting also heard from Dawn Wilson from the Wiltshire Forum for Community Area
Partnerships, who is likewise being made redundant on March 31st. Dawn will however carry on
in a voluntary capacity to support and maintain the network. There is a lot happening on the
buses front and both BA13+ and the Wiltshire Forum for Community Area Partnerships are
attending Option 24/7 meetings and circulating consultations and other information from bus
user groups.

The subsequent Steering Group meeting took place on Tuesday 1st March at Crosspoint in
Westbury. Confirmation was received that Westbury Town Council had agreed to fund BA13+

Page 25


mailto:ba13+@outlook.com

for the next year, news which was extremely gratefully received on behalf of the Partnership.

It was decided that the next Partnership meeting is to be held on Wednesday 18th May 2016,
venue the Parish Church Hall, and the theme is a double-headed one of business and
industry and housing. We are very pleased to announce that Lindsay Holdoway, Managing
Director, HPH Limited has kindly accepted our invitation to address the meeting on the subject
of the new Hawkeridge Business Park..

Phil McMullen, for the BA13+ Community Area Partnership ba13plus@outlook.com

Page 26


mailto:ba13+@outlook.com

healthwatch

Wiltshire

Update for Area Boards - February 2016

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection of The Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS
Foundation Trust (RUH)

The CQC is the independent regulator of health and adult social care in England. On 14th
March 2016 the CQC will be inspecting acute hospital services provided by the RUH. It wants
to hear from local people about their experiences of services and will have an engagement
stall at Trowbridge Library, County Hall on Wednesday 2nd March from 11.00 to 13.00.

If you would like to provide any feedback on your experiences of services, please contact the
CQC on telephone 0300 0616161 or email: enquiries@cqc.org.uk. Alternatively, you can
contact Healthwatch Wiltshire as we work closely with the CQC to support its inspections.

Quality Checkers in Wiltshire

Wiltshire now has a team of trained Quality Checkers available who could be called upon to
check the quality of other services. Healthwatch Wiltshire is encouraging services to make
use of this valuable resource. For the two organisations involved, Healthwatch Wiltshire and
Wiltshire People 1st, it means an increase in the awareness and understanding of what it’s
like for people with learning difficulties living in a Wiltshire care home and to test an
inclusive approach to engagement and volunteering.

A team of people with learning difficulties have taken part in this new project to check the
quality of residential care homes providing support for other people with learning difficulties.
For the team of Quality Checkers who took part it meant an opportunity for training, learn
new life skills, and to take part in a project which is designed to improve services. The team
visited 11 care homes and spoke to residents, empowering them to speak out about their
experiences. On the whole they were impressed with what they saw and heard and produced
informative reports which included recommendations for improvements after each visit.

A report which sums up the pilot project and the 11 individual visit reports are available on
the Healthwatch Wiltshire website. An easy read summary and
a description of the project is also available from Wiltshire
People 1st. They are available in hard copy on request. For
further information, please contact Healthwatch Wiltshire.
Alternatively, you can call Wiltshire People 1st on 01380
871900 email admin@wiltshirepeople1st.org.uk or visit their
website www.wiltshirepeoplefirst.org

Page 27


mailto:enquiries@cqc.org.uk
mailto:admin@wiltshirepeople1st.org.uk
http://www.wiltshirepeople1st.org
mailto:%20info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk




healthwatch
Wiltshire
Area Board Update - March 2016

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection of South Western Ambulance Service NHS
Foundation Trust

The CQC is the independent regulator of all health and adult social care in England. In June
2016 the CQC will be inspecting services provided by the South Western Ambulance Service
NHS Foundation Trust. It wants to hear from local people about their experiences of services
to help them to understand what is good and bad about the care provided by this service.

If you would like to provide any feedback on your experiences of services, please contact the
CQC: telephone 0300 0616161; email tellus@cqgc.org.uk; website www.cqc.org.uk/sye.
Alternatively you can contact Healthwatch Wiltshire as we work closely with the CQC to
support its inspections.

Your Care Your Support Wiltshire

Local people often tell Healthwatch Wiltshire that they want good quality information about
health and care so that they can live more independently and make good choices. We are
working with Wiltshire Council and NHS Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning group, on a new
health and care information website called Your Care Your Support Wiltshire:
www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk. The aim is that the website becomes the ‘go to
place’ for information about health and care. It includes information about health conditions,
paying for care advice on how to stay fit and healthy. It also has a directory of support
services, club and societies. We know that not everyone uses the internet so we are also
making sure that professional staff know about the website so that they can print off
information for their patients and customers. It is an exciting time because we are actively
calling out to local people and professionals to tell us what they would like to be included on
the website. We are also encouraging local groups and services to make sure that they are
included on the site.

Would you like to get involved? We are looking for people to provide feedback on the website
or to get involved in a focus group or reader’s panels. This is your chance to help build a really
useful health and social care website fit for Wiltshire people.

Young Listeners - trained and raring to go!

Healthwatch Wiltshire has an important role in speaking up for all local people on health and
care issues. And that includes children and young people! We are excited about a new project
we are working on with Youth Action Wiltshire (part of Community First) which will make sure
that children and young people are included in our work. The project is recruiting young
people and training them up to become ‘Young Listeners’, who are going to be talking directly
with children and young people to find out their views and experiences of health and care—i.e.
being young carers, living with a special educational need, and
about their own emotional wellbeing. Over the course of the
project the Young Listeners will gather feedback from over 100
children and young people. Ultimately we want the voices of
Wiltshire’s children and young people to be heard by the people
who are buying and providing health and care services.

We would like as many children and young people as possible to
be involved in this project. So if you or your child, or someone you
support or look after would be interested in sharing their
experiences of using health or social care services please get in
touch.

Page 29


mailto:tellus@cqc.org.uk
mailto:enquiries@cqc.org.uk
http://www.cqc.org.uk/sye
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk
mailto:%20info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk




NHS |

Wiltshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

February 2016
Developing mental health services for veterans
The NHS has launched a national engagement on mental health services for veterans.

The engagement will run until 31 March 2016 and aims to capture views and experiences of these
services from a range of stakeholders, including veterans who have or have had a mental health
illness, their families and carers, service charities, commissioners and providers offering treatment and
support in this area.

Findings from the engagement will help to ensure that future mental health services for veterans are
accessible, provide high-quality and sensitive care, treatment and support, and best meet the needs of
veterans, regardless of when they leave the armed forces.

Currently, the NHS commissions 12 mental health services across England for veterans. These were
set up in 2010 following publication of “Fighting Fit: a mental health plan for servicemen and veterans”.
The contract on these services are due in 2016/17 and this provides the NHS with a significant
opportunity to ask people about their views and experiences of the current services. This will also
allow the NHS to explore why some veterans have not sought or received support and treatment.

The NHS wants to hear from people who have served in the armed forces and have used or are
currently using NHS veterans’ mental health services. We also want to hear from family members and
carers of veterans who have or have had mental health difficulties, as well as staff and organisations
that are providing mental health care, treatment and support for veterans and their families.

To take part in the engagement and share your views, which runs from 25 January to 31 March 2016,
please visit: https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/veterans-mental-health-services.

For further information on the engagement exercise or veterans’ mental health services in your area,
please email ENGLAND.VMH-Engagementhub@nhs.net

New provider for adult community health services in Wiltshire

Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group has awarded Wiltshire Health & Care the contract to provide
adult community health services in Wiltshire for the next five years.

Wiltshire Health & Care is a new organisation formed by Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust, Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust and Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation Trust.

The new contract is due to start in July 2016, and will mark the start of an exciting period of change,
where more care will be delivered closer to local communities, people will be supported to maintain
independence and reliance on hospital services will be reduce.

As part of the CCG’s five year plan to bring health care closer to home, the changes to adult
community health services will ensure that the focus is very much on patient centred care with GP

The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you

Page 31


https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/veterans-mental-health-services
mailto:ENGLAND.VMH-Engagementhub@nhs.net

practices firmly at the heart of community provision. Delivered through integrated community teams
across the county, Wiltshire Health & Care will support Wiltshire CCG to meet the challenges of an
ageing population and to enhance partner working across the health economy to provide a health
service fit for tomorrow.

Pilot out of hours service for unwell children

A new pilot service for an out of hours GP service for children has been launched with the aim of
avoiding unnecessary A&E attendances. Parents of children aged 0-10 can now book a same day
appointment to see a GP at the Salisbury Walk In Health Centre.

The extended service provides health advice and treatment for minor illnesses and injuries and
provides parents with a local alternative to A&E when their child is ill and their surgery is closed.

The pilot service, which is already helping to reduce some of the pressure seen at our A&E
departments over the winter months, will run until the end of March 2016. It is available for children
under the age of 10, and is open Monday to Friday 18:00 — 22:00 and Saturday and Sunday 16:00 —
20:00 by contacting the 111 telephone number.

If necessary, the call handler will advise parents to contact the Walk In centre to make a same day
appointment. If however, the child has an obvious serious or life threatening condition; parents are
advised to call 999.

Stay well this Winter campaign

Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group are part of the Stay Well This Winter national campaign to
raise awareness of what you can do to stay healthy this winter and what services are available if you
need additional help.

The national Stay Well This Winter campaign started on 5 October 2015 and will run until 27 March
2016 and will also be providing advice to those with long-term health conditions, over 65s, pregnant
women and parents of under-sevens.

Get the jab, get Flu Safe

NHS Wiltshire CCG is encouraging people to have their flu jab. Flu is a highly contagious infection
that anyone can catch, but it can be very serious for some. For most people flu is a relatively mild
illness from which they recover within a week or two — yet every year people, especially those at risk,
become seriously ill because they don’t get their free flu jab.

Flu is not the same as a cold and it affects people of all ages. If you or someone you care for is in any
of the at-risk groups listed below you can get a free flu jab from your GP.

e everyone aged 65 years and over

e all pregnant women irrespective of their stage of pregnancy

Adults and children over six months with long term heart, lung, kidney, liver or neurological
conditions

people with diabetes

anyone who has a reduced immunity because of an illness or medical condition

people with asthma

anyone in long-stay residential care

carers of disabled or elderly people and healthcare workers that are in direct contact with
patients

The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you

Page 32



Get the best protection for yourself and your family by being flu free this winter and book your
appointment today.

Staying Healthy this winter

NHS Wiltshire CCG is urging people to keep warm and well this winter, especially as the nights are
starting to draw in and the temperature is dropping.

The cold can have serious consequences as it can increase the risk of strokes and heart attacks as
well as causing people to catch colds and flu. Wrapping up warm, keeping the heating turned up,
making sure you have enough winter food supplies and keeping a well-stocked medical cabinet in
case you do catch a cold or flu are all sensible steps to take.

Some tops tips on staying warm and well this winter.

1.

Keep your home warm — set your central heating to between 65 and 70 degrees Fahrenheit (18-
21 degrees centigrade). Heat the room you sit in during the day to 70 degrees, and your
bedroom to 65 degrees. When it’s very cold, set the heating to come on earlier so that you're
not waiting for your home to warm up.

Have your flu jab. Everyone over 65, or with a wide variety of health conditions, is entitled to
one free of charge. Immunity takes effect almost immediately, so even though a flu outbreak is
currently well underway, you can still protect yourself by getting the jab — just call your GP to
make an appointment.

If you do fall ill with flu, it's best to stay at home. Flu is caused by a virus, and cannot be treated
with antibiotics — so a visit to your GP is not necessarily the best course of action.

Vomiting and diarrhoea bugs caused by norovirus are common and very infectious. This can be
a very unpleasant condition, but the best advice is to stay at home and drink plenty of fluids until
the symptoms pass. Norovirus is highly infectious, with an incubation period of between one
and three days. For that reason, you should wait 48 hours after symptoms have stopped before
going back to work or your children go back to school.

Make sure you have enough winter supplies and keep a well-stocked medicine cabinet, with
supplies of ibuprofen, paracetamol and your favourite cold remedy at hand.

Where to go when you're ill - The following points should be helpful when deciding who to contact.

Pharmacies offer over-the-counter medicines and advice. As well as being open during
regular retail hours, they operate an out-of-hours service on a rota basis;

Call NHS 111 for advice or go to NHS Choices website www.nhs.uk. They can give a wide
range of advice and information about many conditions;

Use the minor injuries units at Chippenham and Trowbridge or the walk-in centres in
Swindon and Salisbury for cuts, burns and other injuries — but not for colds, flu or vomiting;
Make an appointment with your own GP - an out-of-hours service is also available;

If it is a genuine emergency, go to your local A&E department or call 999 for an ambulance

Keep an eye on elderly or frail friends, neighbours and relatives this winter and join us in helping
Wiltshire stay well this winter.

The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you

Page 33


http://www.nhs.uk/




NHS |

Wiltshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

March 2016
New Daisy service on target for summer opening

A brand new building, which will provide specialised services for individuals with complex learning
disabilities and challenging behaviour, is now near completion and will open this summer.

The facility, called ‘The Daisy’ and based near Green Lane Hospital in Devizes, has been
commissioned by NHS Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group and services will be provided by Avon
and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust (AWP). People will receive person-centred care
and support within a local residential setting, allowing them to live as independently as possible within
a community setting. Each individual living area will be fully equipped with a kitchen, en-suite
bathroom and lounge area and people have contributed to the design of their own living areas by
choosing their colour schemes and soft furnishing — a home from home.

The community aspect of this build will allow people living there to engage with the surrounding area,
and involve them at the heart of the community. People will be supported to maintain their family
relationships, build a fulfilled life through participation in the community, such as education, sports and
leisure and they will be able to access mainstream services when required to ensure that their health
and social needs are meet.

The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you

Page 35



Wiltshire’s plan to tackle obesity: have your say

Wiltshire residents are being asked to have their say on NHS Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG) and Wiltshire Council’s plan to tackle the issue of obesity in the county.

Obesity impacts on everyone, so the CCG and council are keen to hear from as many people as
possible to get their feedback on this draft strategy ahead of the consultation deadline on 30 April.

In Wiltshire, 29.3% of children aged 10 to 11 years are overweight or obese, along with 63.6% of
adults.

The draft strategy is based on feedback from last year’s Wiltshire obesity Summit and on evidence of
what works in preventing and addressing the challenges posed by obesity.

The strategy aims to halt and then reverse the obesity situation in the county, and will complement and
build on work already underway to support Wiltshire residents to achieve and maintain a healthy
weight.

To take part in the consultation people should visit http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/obesity-strateqy-2016-
consultation.htm

Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) in Wiltshire

The contract for ADHD services in Wiltshire is currently held by Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health
Partnership Trust (AWP) and this contract is due to finish at the end of March 2016.

Whilst a review of the whole contract is being undertaken, a temporary ADHD contract with AWP has
been negotiated to run from 1 March until 31 August.

This extension will ensure that a large proportion of the current services can continue until a
permanent two year contract can be agreed, and during this period AWP will continue to provide an
ongoing service for:

e Existing patients who have already been assessed and diagnosed

e EXxisting patients who require ongoing follow up and prescribing

e Patients already being cared for under the shared care process

e Urgent and/or prioritised new referrals as approved by the CCG Exceptions Panel

The new contract will start on 1 September 2016.

The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you

Page 36


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/obesity-strategy-2016-consultation.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/obesity-strategy-2016-consultation.htm

Developing mental health services for veterans
The NHS has launched a national engagement on mental health services for veterans.

The engagement will run until 31 March 2016 and aims to capture views and experiences of these
services from a range of stakeholders, including veterans who have or have had a mental health
illness, their families and carers, service charities, commissioners and providers offering treatment and
support in this area.

Findings from the engagement will help to ensure that future mental health services for veterans are
accessible, provide high-quality and sensitive care, treatment and support, and best meet the needs of
veterans, regardless of when they leave the armed forces.

Currently, the NHS commissions 12 mental health services across England for veterans. These were
set up in 2010 following publication of “Fighting Fit: a mental health plan for servicemen and veterans”.
The contract on these services are due in 2016/17 and this provides the NHS with a significant
opportunity to ask people about their views and experiences of the current services. This will also
allow the NHS to explore why some veterans have not sought or received support and treatment.

The NHS wants to hear from people who have served in the armed forces and have used or are
currently using NHS veterans’ mental health services. We also want to hear from family members and
carers of veterans who have or have had mental health difficulties, as well as staff and organisations
that are providing mental health care, treatment and support for veterans and their families.

To take part in the engagement and share your views, which runs from 25 January to 31 March 2016,
please visit: https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/veterans-mental-health-services.

For further information on the engagement exercise or veterans’ mental health services in your area,
please email ENGLAND.VMH-Engagementhub@nhs.net

Stay well this Winter campaign

Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group are part of the Stay Well This Winter national campaign to
raise awareness of what you can do to stay healthy this winter and what services are available if you
need additional help.

The national Stay Well This Winter campaign started on 5 October 2015 and will run until 27 March
2016 and will also be providing advice to those with long-term health conditions, over 65s, pregnant
women and parents of under-sevens.

Get the jab, get Flu Safe

NHS Wiltshire CCG is encouraging people to have their flu jab. Flu is a highly contagious infection
that anyone can catch, but it can be very serious for some. For most people flu is a relatively mild
illness from which they recover within a week or two — yet every year people, especially those at risk,
become seriously ill because they don’t get their free flu jab.

Flu is not the same as a cold and it affects people of all ages. If you or someone you care for is in any
of the at-risk groups listed below you can get a free flu jab from your GP.

e everyone aged 65 years and over
e all pregnant women irrespective of their stage of pregnancy

The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you

Page 37


https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/veterans-mental-health-services
mailto:ENGLAND.VMH-Engagementhub@nhs.net

Adults and children over six months with long term heart, lung, kidney, liver or neurological
conditions

people with diabetes

anyone who has a reduced immunity because of an illness or medical condition

people with asthma

anyone in long-stay residential care

carers of disabled or elderly people and healthcare workers that are in direct contact with
patients

Get the best protection for yourself and your family by being flu free this winter and book your
appointment today.

Staying Healthy this winter

NHS Wiltshire CCG is urging people to keep warm and well this winter, especially as the nights are
starting to draw in and the temperature is dropping.

The cold can have serious consequences as it can increase the risk of strokes and heart attacks as
well as causing people to catch colds and flu. Wrapping up warm, keeping the heating turned up,
making sure you have enough winter food supplies and keeping a well-stocked medical cabinet in
case you do catch a cold or flu are all sensible steps to take.

Some tops tips on staying warm and well this winter.

1.

Keep your home warm — set your central heating to between 65 and 70 degrees Fahrenheit (18-
21 degrees centigrade). Heat the room you sit in during the day to 70 degrees, and your
bedroom to 65 degrees. When it’s very cold, set the heating to come on earlier so that you're
not waiting for your home to warm up.

Have your flu jab. Everyone over 65, or with a wide variety of health conditions, is entitled to
one free of charge. Immunity takes effect almost immediately, so even though a flu outbreak is
currently well underway, you can still protect yourself by getting the jab — just call your GP to
make an appointment.

If you do fall ill with flu, it's best to stay at home. Flu is caused by a virus, and cannot be treated
with antibiotics — so a visit to your GP is not necessarily the best course of action.

Vomiting and diarrhoea bugs caused by norovirus are common and very infectious. This can be
a very unpleasant condition, but the best advice is to stay at home and drink plenty of fluids until
the symptoms pass. Norovirus is highly infectious, with an incubation period of between one
and three days. For that reason, you should wait 48 hours after symptoms have stopped before
going back to work or your children go back to school.

Make sure you have enough winter supplies and keep a well-stocked medicine cabinet, with
supplies of ibuprofen, paracetamol and your favourite cold remedy at hand.

Where to go when you're ill - The following points should be helpful when deciding who to contact.

Pharmacies offer over-the-counter medicines and advice. As well as being open during
regular retail hours, they operate an out-of-hours service on a rota basis;

Call NHS 111 for advice or go to NHS Choices website www.nhs.uk. They can give a wide
range of advice and information about many conditions;

Use the minor injuries units at Chippenham and Trowbridge or the walk-in centres in
Swindon and Salisbury for cuts, burns and other injuries — but not for colds, flu or vomiting;
Make an appointment with your own GP - an out-of-hours service is also available;

If it is a genuine emergency, go to your local A&E department or call 999 for an ambulance

The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you

Page 38


http://www.nhs.uk/

Keep an eye on elderly or frail friends, neighbours and relatives this winter and join us in helping
Wiltshire stay well this winter.

The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you

Page 39






Agenda Item 8.

Wiltshire Council

Westbury Area Board

7 April 2016
Subject: Local Highways Investment Fund 2014 — 2020
Report Author: Parvis Khansari, Associate Director Highways and

Transport

Executive Summary

Wiltshire Council is undertaking a major programme of investment in highway
maintenance over six years, which is delivering a significant improvement in the
condition of the county’s highway network.

The flooding in 2013/14 had an adverse effect on road conditions, but the
additional investment through the Council’s ‘Local Highways Investment Fund
2014 — 2020’ has arrested this deterioration, and the county’s road conditions
continue to improve.

The investment has been targeted at those roads in worst condition, and
includes minor roads as well as the main roads. The programme is just reaching
the end of its second year, and has already seen a substantial amount of work
completed (see Appendix 1).

In 2016/17 it is proposed to increase expenditure on treating the smaller sites,
many of which have been outstanding for some time, and to reduce the number
of larger surfacing sites.

A list of potential sites for next year has been prepared for each community area
(see Appendix 2). The site list is based on the existing condition of the roads
and the anticipated deterioration in the future, and the area boards are invited to
consider the proposals.

It should be noted that the list will probably need to be reviewed during the year
as the rate of deterioration of individual roads does vary because of weather
and local conditions.

There has been an extensive programme of integrated transport, traffic
management and safety schemes carried out in recent years. (See Appendix
3). The Community Area Transport Groups (CATGs) have had a vital role in
helping prioritise schemes.

Page 41



The Council is in the process of identifying a ‘Resilient Road Network’ (See
Appendix 4), which will form the core network where specific measures would
be considered in order to ensure the continuing availability of this route in
extreme weather conditions.

Proposals

Area Boards are asked to note the work completed so far in connection with the
‘Local highways Investment Fund 2014 — 2020’°, and consider the list of
proposals for highway maintenance in their areas for 2016/17.

The Area Board are requested to note the proposed ‘Wiltshire Resilient Road
Network’, and are invited to comment on the proposed network and any
sections of the route of particular concern in their area.

Reason for Proposal

Wiltshire Council has a major programme of investment in highway
maintenance over six years, which is already delivering a significant
improvement in the condition of the county’s highway network.

The views of the Area Board are important in helping identify local priorities for
road maintenance, and future programmes of work.

Page 42




Wiltshire Council

Westbury Area Board

7 April 2016
Subject: Local Highways Investment Fund 2014 — 2020
Report Author: Parvis Khansari, Associate Director Highways and

Transport

Purpose of Report

1. To advise the Area Board regarding progress on Wiltshire Council’s Local
Highways Investment Fund 2014 — 2020, and to review the local highway
maintenance priorities for 2016/17.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2. The Council’s Business Plan sets out the vision to create stronger and
more resilient communities. It includes three key priorities and twelve
actions that the Council will deliver over the next four years. One of the
twelve actions is to ‘invest additional money between 2014 -17 to reduce
the historic backlog in highways maintenance’.

Background

3. Expenditure on highways maintenance declined substantially during the
1990’s, and there was underinvestment in roads maintenance nationally
for many years. There was an increase in spending from 2000/1, with the
introduction of Local Transport Plan funding, but there was still a large
backlog of maintenance required on the network.

4. In 2014 Wiltshire Council started a major programme of investment in
highway maintenance over six years to bring about a significant
improvement in the condition of the county’s highway network.

Main Considerations for the Council

Local Highways Investment Fund 2014 - 2020

5. The investment is being targeted at those roads in worst condition, and
includes minor roads as well as the main roads. Assessments based on
road safety information and road condition data has been used to prepare
annual lists of priority sites for treatment which are presented to the Area
Boards for consideration.

Page 43



10.

11.

Some roads need to be treated as priorities in order to address skid
resistance and safety problems. As well as addressing the roads in worst
condition, improvements are being made to the drainage and footways to
bring them up to standard.

In addition to the larger sites, the Council has also been repairing smaller
localised sites which are suffering from deterioration, or which need
repairs. This programme of pothole and defect repairs will continue across
the county in response to local damage identified through the Council’s
regular inspections or reports from the public and road users.

Condition of Roads in Wiltshire

The condition of classified roads is measured by technical surveys carried
out using vehicle mounted laser scanners to a methodology established by
the Department for Transport (DfT). These reflect the overall road
condition and have been reported as National Indicators for a number of
years.

The condition of the classified roads in Wiltshire has improved
considerably since 2009/10. The flooding in 2013/14 clearly had an
adverse effect on the road network, but the additional investment through
the Council’s Local Highways Investment Fund has helped stem this
deterioration.

The investment made by the Council over the years has seen a reduction
in the length of A Class road where treatment should be considered:

Wiltshire A Roads

5 \\
4 N .

. N_— T~

h -

(=]
L

T T T T T T
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Percentage of A Class Roads in Wiltshire in poor condition

The B and C class roads have also improved. There has been a reduction
in the percentage of road where treatment should be considered in recent
years:

Page 44



12.

13.

14.

15.

Wiltshire B & C Roads

T T T T T T
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Percentage of B and C Class roads in Wiltshire in poor condition

The condition data on the unclassified roads is not as robust as for the
classified roads, but indications are that these roads are also starting to
improve. Data is being collected on the unclassified road network using
the same methodology as for the classified roads, but this will take a few
years to achieve the same level of detail. Initial analysis of this data
indicates that approximately 6% of the surveyed unclassified network is in
poor condition.

The road conditions in Wiltshire have been compared to other south-west
counties. Conditions of the A class roads in Wiltshire, based on the
2013/14 figures published by DfT, are broadly similar to those in Dorset
and Somerset, but not as good as those in Devon and Cornwall. The B
and C Class roads, which are an important part of the network in Wiltshire,
have been better than those of the adjoining counties for a number of
years.

Highways Maintenance Programme

There has been considerable maintenance work carried out on the
highway network in Wiltshire in the last two years as part of the Council’s
Local Highways Investment Fund. The list of local sites completed is
included as Appendix 1.

During 2015/16 there were a number of sites which it was not possible to
complete. These were primarily surface dressing sites, sometimes referred
to as ‘tar and chip’, which is a cheap cost effective way of treating rural
roads. However, it does need the underlying road structure to be in good
condition as it provides a thin surface to improve skid resistance and seal
the road construction, but does not add significantly to the strength to the
road.

Page 45



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

In the event the extent of structural repairs required on some of the minor
roads proved larger than anticipated, and some surface dressing sites had
to be deferred. The process has to be carried out during a short period in
the summer, and it was not possible to complete the full programme of
works last year.

There were a few sites which had to be postponed because of public
utilities work. This was to avoid the road being dug up soon after being
laid. The intention is that that any public utility mains and cables should be
laid completed before the road is resurfaced.

A list of potential sites for next year has been prepared for each
community area (see Appendix 2). The site list is based on the existing
condition of the roads and the anticipated deterioration in the future, and
the area boards are invited to consider the proposals.

In view of the general improvement in road conditions, and the current
financial restrictions, it is proposed to defer some of next year’s investment
until following years. This will reduce the number of larger surfacing sites
being undertaken next year, but those where road safety is a serious
consideration will still be prioritised.

The new contractual arrangements following the end of the current
highways contract has enabled the Council to establish a direct contract
with the surfacing sub-contractor. This has seen an improvement in
service with more certainty of delivery with a good quality of work.

An area where delivery has improved significantly in recent months is with
regard to the smaller sites where there is localised damage and potholes.
These can be particularly difficult because they often need road closures
and diversions to enable the works to be carried out safely. Programming
these works, and integrating them with works by other on the network, is a
challenge, but good progress is now being made.

It is proposed to increase the budget for this type of work substantially in
2016/17 in order to address some of the smaller sites which it has not
been possible to progress in recent years. It is intended that the local
Highways staff will have greater input in identifying priorities, potentially
with the CATGs also being involved. The procedures will be developed in
more details over the next few months.

The Council has been carrying out footway and drainage works in
conjunction with many of the surfacing sites, but there is a requirement to
develop a programme of footway works. Condition data has been
collected for the urban footways over a number of years, and is expected
to be substantially completed this year. This will enable a programme of
footway major maintenance to be identified for consultation and potential
implementation in 2017/18.

Integrated Transport Schemes

Page 46



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

The CATGs have proved particularly successful at identifying and
prioritising local transport issues, and a number of schemes have been
delivered in recent years, with many more being developed for future
implementation. See Appendix 3.

It is proposed that this process should continue with the budgets for this
type of work continuing for next year. The Area Boards are encouraged to
use the CATG process to deal with local concerns.

The Council analyses the injury accident records in order to identify sites
with particular accident problems. These sites are reviewed and where
appropriate improvements are proposed. These will continue to be
developed, with the CATG kept informed of progress.

Resilient Road Network

The major maintenance work is improving the condition of the highway
network and making it more resilient to extremes of weather. The flooding
during 2014 affected a number of key routes in the county, and there is a
need to identify a core network where specific measures should be
considered in order to ensure the continuing availability of the route.

The Council already has an identified network of main roads which is the
priority to keep open in the event of an extreme snow event. This
comprises the busiest main roads, and is about 10% of the network. Once
these have been cleared other roads are then treated in accordance with
local priorities and conditions. There is a much more substantial network
of roads which is subject to precautionary salting when ice is forecast.

It is proposed that the core network (See Appendix 4) should be
designated the ‘Wiltshire Resilient Road Network’, and should be reviewed
to determine whether specific measures are necessary to ensure its
continued availability in adverse weather conditions of all types.

Any comments on the proposed resilient network, or areas of concern,
would be appreciated, especially with regard to any sections of the route
which may be considered particularly vulnerable. The Area Board may
wish the CATG to consider the proposed network.

Extending the length of roads to be included in the core network would not
be feasible because of resource limitation with regard to snow ploughing
or specific works to improve resilience. If the proposed resilient network is
too large it could divert funding away from other roads on the network.

Safeguarding Implications

32.

Does not apply.

Public Health Implications

Page 47



33.

34.

35.

36.

Increased investment in road maintenance has benefits for public health.
The improved road surfaces, better skid resistance and associated safety
improvements help reduce the numbers killed and injured on the road
network. These improvements complement the other measures to improve
road safety, such as traffic calming and speed limits, being introduced
through the Local Transport Plan funding and the Community Area Traffic
Groups.

The improved road surfaces, particularly on the minor urban roads, will be
of benefit to cyclists and pedestrians. At present the condition of some of
the urban roads may discourage cycling as cyclists are adversely affected
by poor road conditions and uneven or damaged surfaces. The proposed
investment would support the strategy to encourage cycling as set out in
the Local Transport Plan.

Roads in poor condition in urban areas can result in disturbance and noise
for residents, especially on busier routes carrying heavy goods vehicles at
night. Better road surfaces should result in reduced background noise in
residential areas, with potential mental and physical health benefits.

The Council monitors road collision data in order to focus safety
improvements at those sites with the worst accident records. With the
additional funding this process will continue, and where appropriate other
alterations to signing, drainage, street lighting or road markings could be
incorporated into resurfacing work and schemes to improve safety.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

37.

38.

39.

The road network is particularly vulnerable to the effects of climate
change. In recent years we have seen the effects of a series of severe
winters which have resulted in damage to the roads and an increase in the
number of potholes. In 2014 flooding damaged a number of roads in
Wiltshire, and increased deterioration.

In the longer term a more robust highway network, with roads in better
condition, would require less reactive maintenance and reduced travelling
to respond to potholes and localised defects. A planned maintenance
regime would enable the traffic disruption to be kept to a minimum. With
unplanned maintenance the delays to traffic and associated fuel
consumption could be considerable.

The identification of a Resilient Road Network for the county will help
identify the key areas where measures may be required to ensure the
continuing availability of main routes in extreme weather conditions.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

40.

The improvements in road safety anticipated with increased investment in
road maintenance would be expected to benefit all road users, but

Page 48



41.

especially the more vulnerable, including pedestrians, cyclists and other
non vehicle users.

The highway network is important to local businesses, and to public
transport operators. The delays due to un-programmed maintenance and
road repairs have been identified as concerns by local businesses. The
high profile programme of works to address road conditions will help send
the message that transport is important in Wiltshire and could help to
promote inward investment and job creation.

Risk Assessment

42.

43.

There are serious risks in connection with road maintenance. These
include the safety and reputational aspects of those killed and seriously
injured on the highway network. In order to reduce these risks the Council
has approved highway inspection and skid resistance procedures in place,
but in order to keep the network in safe condition it is important that the
highway network has adequate investment, and the safety issues are
prioritised.

The road condition data collected thorough the technical surveys is used
to focus investment on those sites where there is most need and greatest
risk. As well as the safety benefits this approach also ensures that best
use is made of the limited available funding in order to keep the asset in
optimum condition.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken

44,

45.

The risks to the Council from lack of road maintenance are in terms of
claims against the Council as the result of accidents, or in extreme cases
prosecution as a result of particular incidents. As well as the safety and
cost aspects, there are also significant reputational implications of such
events.

Not carrying out highway maintenance would lead to declining public
satisfaction in the future as road conditions remain the same and no
progress is made on improving them.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks

46.

47.

There is a risk that the proposals will not deliver the improvements in road
condition anticipated. This risk will be managed by using the technical data
to focus the necessary investment on those sections of road where work is
required to meet safety requirements, and on those places where it would
improve road conditions the most. Effective asset management will reduce
this risk and make sure the investment is effective.

There is a risk that the investment will not increase public satisfaction with

the service. In view of the initial results from those authorities which have
made a substantial investment it would appear that satisfaction levels will

Page 49



improve with the investment. However, a programme of publicity, branding
and public involvement through the Area Boards will help raise awareness
of the project, and will help to reduce this risk.

Financial Implications

48. The Council’s approved budget has included increased investment to
deliver the Council’s Business Plan with regard to road maintenance. This
has been £24 million for the past two years. It is proposed that £3 million
of next year’s expenditure will be moved in to future years in view of the
improving road conditions and current budget pressures.

Legal Implications

49. The Council has a duty under the Highways Act to maintain the county’s
roads. The highway inspection procedures, policies and improvement
plans ensure that this duty is fulfilled. The increased investment and
improved road conditions is helping the Council meet its responsibilities
with regard to road maintenance.

Options Considered

50. The Council reviews its proposed road maintenance programme annually
in order to make best use of the latest information and take into account
deterioration of the road conditions because of weather or other factors.

Conclusions

51. The conditions of the road network are important to the public, and this is
reflected through the People’s Voice and NHT surveys. There has been
expenditure above anticipated LTP funding levels in Wiltshire which is
improving the condition of Wiltshire’s highway network.

52. The Highways Investment Fund 2014 — 2020 over the six years will
provide a significant improvement to the condition of the network, including
improving the condition of the unclassified roads, and improving safety on
the classified roads. The involvement of the Area Boards to help identify
local priorities for treatment is important.

Parvis Khansari
Associate Director Highways and Transport

Report Author:

Peter Binley, Head of Highways Asset Management, Wiltshire Council, County
Hall, Trowbridge, Wiltshire BA14 8JN

(e-mail peter.binley@wiltshire.gov.uk).

12t February 2016

Page 50



Background Papers

The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation of
this report: None

Appendices
Appendix 1 — Highways Major Maintenance sites 2014 — 16
Appendix 2 — Potential Future Highways Maintenance Sites

Appendix 3 — Recent local CATG Schemes
Appendix 4 — Resilient Road Network

Page 51






APPENDIX 1
Completed Highways Major Maintenance 2014/16 — Westbury Area Board

Road Location Recommended Treatment
u/C Oldfield Park, Westbury Resurfacing
Trowbridge Road, approach to Bitham Park . .
A350 Roundabout, Westbury Skid Resistance Improvements
B3099 Sewage Works, Dilton Marsh Skid Resistance Improvements
o
g A3098 A36 to Westbury Resurfacing
[
83 A350 Westbury Co-op Roundabout to Market Place Resurfacing
B3097 Hawkeridge Road, North Bradley Carriageway repairs
u/C Wellhead Lane, Westbury Resurfacing







APPENDIX 2
Proposed Highways Major Maintenance 2016/17 — Westbury Area Board

Estimated
Road Location Recommended Treatment Length
(m)
u/C Salisbury Hollow, Edington Resurfacing 115
Bratton Road, Westbury. This includes other sections
B3098 | at Bratton and Edington Repairs and resurfacing 11000
g-? B3097 Hawkeridge Road, Heywood Skid Resistance Improvements 190
®
o A350 Trowbridge Road, Westbury Skid Resistance Improvements 50
(6]
B3099 Clivey, Dilton Marsh Skid Resistance Improvements 110
Station Road, Westbury. From The Ham mini round- . .
B3097 about to Protyre Carriageway Repairs 625







APPENDIX 3

Integrated Transport Schemes Completed 2014 to 2016 —

Westbury Area Board

Road Location Scheme Description
A3098 Chapmanslade 18t weight limit signs
B3099 Dilton Marsh Weight limit signs
B3097 Westbury, The Ham Signs & Markings
A350 Westbury, Hospital Signs
u/C Bratton, Westbury Road CATG - Village gate
u/C Bratton, The Hollow CATG - Horse warning signs
B3098 Bratton, Emms Lane to Stradbrook Footpath CATG - Relocation of cycle barrier
C228 Coulston CATG - Single track road signs
C19 Edington, Tinhead Road CATG - Horse warning signs
u/C Westbury, Avebury Close CATG - Street lighting
A3098 Westbury, White Horse Health Centre CATG - bus shelter amendments
A350/ U/C | Westbury, Wellhead Drove/ Warminster Road | CATG - Junction improvements
C390 Westbury, Rosefield Way CATG - Drop kerbs
A3098 Westbury, Eden Vale Road CATG - Traffic management measures
A350 Westbury, Warminster Road CATG - Bus shelter at Aldi
u/C Westbury, Market Place CATG - Disabled Parking amendments
C397 Westbury, Brook Road CATG - Weight limit
u/C Westbury, Newtown CATG - Bend warning sign/ chevron
A3098 Westbury, White Horse Health Centre CATG - Pedestrian route signs
A350 Westbury, High Street and Leigh Park CATG - Cycle parking
B3097 Westbury, Station Road CATG - Keep Clear Markings
A350 Westbury, High Street CATG - Traffic Regulation Order signing
u/C Westbury Leigh, Camargue Road CATG - Direction signs
u/C Hisomley Rechargeable - Single Track road signs
u/C Westbury, Rugby Club Rechargeable - Signs
A3098 Tower Hill Road Marking Review
A350 Trowbridge Road Road Marking Review
C49/C219 | Bratton Safety Scheme - Signs & Markings
C49/C19 Edington, Lower Road / Monastery Road Substantive CATG - Junction alterations
Footway Westbury, Indigo Lane Substantive CATG - Street lighting
B3099 Dilton Marsh Primary School TAOSJ - Primary School

Page 57







Wiltshire Resilient Road Network

Wiltshire Council

~—————=_ Where everybody matters

,. 5 w‘m N

H-:mndsnr

Strbiton

G!REHGESTEH

_hz-?'lfill W'

v A41 7

&' {?ﬁ
Harnhiiif" hrnﬁnﬂ

.;ﬁ ek tm
-;u AEL A e ,‘,M
(SAPH THERTEN "“‘ St Peter
IL ,..

{V 4?) “I.".nr[taldL

{ >

| o

u%

ST Poligs

|, mptnnﬁ\u

Ad19

S Coates
P

é// Sapperton
X

'J r}“ d mll-l .l.l-H I|'I.I'Il
_-L:.‘-_"'
s :r\‘} ﬁ Hf,:f u*. ‘/’J}

Glums fl
r_;r‘-:’-"“k

o
'\-\.

Br
> W Lan "
! Elanlharld
A, Friars |

. - ..'\. = J r \
\ e Z;uadrmil j: .- ) P
y i,
'\'\.- % . m
y o ,_,Jk—_

Fanng an

f i P-uultnn-,
i \ 13 LEIL'H DE 1,,

uu THAMES - .’5 ‘

. oy eﬂ:rhv‘"' "Lf:_.
;Z::-‘ s .::'

¥ Eus.l_:nt

= ]

|' | -"'xd‘

| Kelmscott

ﬁ ,ﬂ’-';-\-._.

w2 Ealon
Hashngs

Hdm

g

L1

.
Eamwell
'ﬂ\ Marsh

&

Inglésham
)

¢ e

( Sy
N }.Tg'iiéhk}n .

1
.\I

e
T
. FARINGOON

ﬁ' -

2 EI'IH!III v d

l:ilm-cmlgz '_q
Hise

tanford
L \ TR ‘“\\uuus o ﬂte'ﬂale—

[Hlulu 1lu|'
pr=d

L%

1 N Cruhiead|
i Hs,r.w.rarh F:igj( ;

Yot/

A

= HlEI-I'HﬂH H

~..,.,

F‘iumnen f;iﬁ {'., . hampmn 1’7:

"-’ Braad
A“"g fﬁ—'ﬂhnsdm r!.”'

_...-"-—""

e

Elunsdun

e

Shigton
| Wome

rﬂmva B

IA 1:} East
weatl}l'nallnw Challow _
Smishdl |

A | odvury nk%‘mm
fh untha
Z i |-||||

el
"t.:- -:L‘Q ";:'E;l‘

.! |
'ila Wkaﬂs%

h wu-ntstmj ‘K.in Lrsl
7 Compton s}
Beauchamp Llﬂjﬂnqmt mu r,gH

4" L HE XI5
= \ v 4 Eu::g Whitehorse \,
@ -~ - A Lk 2]
=AN / ;
HITHiFI

i i\swmnon e

Hi‘WkEShEII
.=""-'-,., Lr__})

& =
) _—4
wr;_,,_‘ﬂ_ﬂlf;‘inwﬁ;lﬂl” !

Swou )
| f/jq
—
e~

e
o

-~ Eaﬂﬂﬁﬂ

, P | -
-‘ 1
Gnlteni:am | 4 _ y B { . =g ﬁﬁnhnmuﬁh 7
I i -
p ) | k = , R _ Upper
J & r [ X T N B (M ‘\ ':E;-.Lamh-ﬂuL

A wiﬂﬁ*

uf ‘“ig Lam!mllr[

-

R I}EITT{I'H_

---— T b
' ol '

Da ur;;s:é_fj

L AE
Hull-cmllglm ?,?
"I' Szanmn

Gntteton™=_= fe——t
—i._ﬁl[lrhaldl'lﬂl
'Senllrﬂs

{L ‘JL Tﬂchanham

W==70 .

Wa
Al

dbourme

Ljuetranﬁ
shtnn

P ==X
Hutuatun uﬁ ‘"-.‘f?;r- J Ga:;ﬁ;a
ﬁ;pﬁ;ﬁasﬂe i Eﬂmhﬂ

,}F’[:mnb

et *':':H.inginn -
§ = sm:maal}

G s | |
n , 1r|§uan
Malford
I f"%\_,il.n-‘-"—".‘ ':\\j\x y \

sl Foutram =<5 Garston

. lIlllrr r_,.-" \\_
! y F g ¢ fﬂrmdlﬂ'ﬁds
WIntnrpudma 5 \ ) t .

Hassatt

Berwick »
Bassealt 'p.

iy o

Emaﬂ Hmtmx”

-'."\-

TR
o Spar tmll
jj‘.]' — - .*-\-\_-Jﬁ“*—-\_\.:‘ff

¢ East Ty'ﬂjertun

Pk
x a8

Grea
Shefia

b

I £ Hllmfr-;-nn‘_‘ G

[},—. < J") Highway

4@ J

CALH
_ ‘\:?L h’ﬂhm’hlfl

T8, W uemeﬂnrd*—-—-—rﬁ-

& A & - : i F
I'- -'l \-\'1..._ I_.l e - ) ™, i -\'\_

) 5, Weston 3 S
Hj? -
Mol

..I..:\.'

i
/41{ ﬁ‘idﬂe&lﬂne%
BB

fr

Gﬂmpll:ln \

o

Windri
Ml

Wall
N

Baszsell
Hungerford ‘:,5
o et F
e

L
Yatesbury {nf
ré_.l. «E ) Wick
[+ 3 gliat) ﬂ [} /}fi\f
| - i 1 );'
B = F o\ Qvil.rlmt
Huhasn

i[L. : Horse “vehury s - / : ) i -.,.._ o | i

UE:EIII.N\
/
e . [ Avingtin 7

! r_‘m.fh_

L Il‘_

Galstone

Waolley -wmmgm L 0

Lansdown s

| ;
-y "
p “w&\gdstaj
LN __J-_:.—:—l"\-\._,-
5 N =
Ve |

:._.-I

FORD

e
o

1 ; —
]

W
J L

\\ j Tu-il thea®on g .
e i i k TI:IIT-I;i_]
AR B A

. ,annI:iun
‘e \ ﬂtha _E. i? Finmgh"‘*--?'

L e
.-._.. & =
L0

Ih.
{aismn =

| WEE[E!I]"

Whltl&}'

b
Amwort p ;:,ﬂ..-,g;fx r' by “'TJ'JI'

,r*"*"\&

-.&!'{H{Eﬂflilutljl
8

= 1643
R oo Roumiwg

= 'L.. ".|I 3 = --'l'-.-l
)L A3 1::| Jh"ﬁh iy A
/ b iy WhilE Horse

,fﬂmwla _ ;______Hmnmuay,..#

fn_-.——'- .. I V

fo

Haﬁlv:rt!;; I

e

A I"I”mg:d__'?ﬁ_t

Bishops
n  Alton Barnes

L" Gannlngs
{ Q Alingta

==dvhite Horse h‘h'
QM\) = —x,jtlhm rnas Stowel "—|'|.—

\ _a
5!3 L] 1)
DEHIZESﬁ st ik i

1B.|:I'||Iha mph]ﬂ ~——

Mg

S axall,.,.-;_ orrington . Shawil
K\‘ y i‘ﬁun'mnn

I_WBI!-'”“\ e
*ﬂa"\%w}u e iﬁj‘qﬁ/;:;:@ t{n\

Muzrar _}i'

,5, Eﬁ_t]wﬁfrmd

Eraurumj ==
.5.""%] Ithﬂm
"ﬁbﬂ : 3

mﬂn
-s-r-]'* ar

e e T

Mk 4O "-"J'
" :

L=—=H
.«"f Srfa"lh aurne %&\‘
S . 7

reen
S rﬁrﬂrﬁw{- 3

IhaatWa-n ha
__;I.-’ﬁi*m {if

"15'" Easl
U1\ Woodh

—

#

Lomng |

EITO I".-*-

..-;1'1,,

#nba f:?“
L
~;.

; ;‘l e
- e
Shrl:’j;;ﬁ,-&

A
e

> i =
Wast &, Wl Fast
. Gralton Grafton
Wemunme@

i |
¥ Tidcombe ."f‘

| Sireat |
IrBruntvl:lru e Haveown '!"Lf _\(\- -:Ilr
\‘1\ fa ] Ve hmnét\/"}” P

T P
=1 ,__,f_«é L M.

'i‘r \ | i

I X!

Harhm

e 'TﬁiﬁiﬂéﬂFk'
mhe&ay ﬁ "I:lhl.tn-u.

"' W'EIW ﬁ*-_-rﬁl-llnlm
-\._\_’Jlr-:

Eﬂﬂ‘_g}.'ll'l'l -""’\.\.[‘.Imrtﬂrhuusﬂ
Jlﬂ!l’l ’J"T 7‘«,;-'%".'-.' i 2
{’ u\ '.".‘- h

P ek W gl O P
l §En= ml:re“ 'f{\ - & i /T 16 oy \3\\{/
i~ ;}y A P S B ; / “C.J:‘*

,-,. "__, 1 k " r y me > |

l.'llltm: .‘
8y Lllhuurrltp‘ oy
e Frmtor
il
Hi

i)
Facn}n{a
\_-.::f—— '||-
(&, i

.IIII
-,

Pa men_.r ﬂmchlmﬂnm ke orth

'Hedhaln tnn,n-_ e s
P =5 | ﬂ1|fb:-n ‘?'x Wils hmﬂewntnu i

!Iiardﬂn | i

; u“kmhult,-f
AL 8 ‘hmham 3,*:"“ =
o ‘\

Aughtan

Sy
Eulklngtnn Manningford

Bohune

e
.'_'\'-\.'\'"

..l_—-—--"
{ Collinghourne
Iﬁngstm:

i 3" YT 3
== IIF,ﬂ_dIcIin!i y AJEEH l.‘rhmrlﬂﬂ
_'-ir- s

- 1 .
= 2

Icﬂllinghpmm. .

Everleigh !
Fast !
| Ghisenbury

4

Ing{wt

\..\L
’i{b‘-‘ﬁﬂ

> Hirfigld

“?ﬁ e :

‘5’ Hauhr;,]mn} f.‘mlpton
¥ . — < : = Camplion :
ﬂ&'i'. B“':E I—"tll_r:' 4 : oo X [ Z s ¢ "I"‘-'_"_ e 5 Down Enfﬁdﬁ
i ; 55 ' WESTBURY. , & : ; | =

' Lsthury Laigh
h |
W

scudamore

=

Ha ardan

-’E:Iamnll |
II” Eentnn

.

Doper 0
North
Mell Tidworth

Tidwrarth
Cam

cinforg Howm

i{fRUME. n g

s Wt Orcheston i ”i'"ﬂ"" -

Tilslmad fheiwn gt
= ,}".I,Wes'tdown Camp

Hﬁﬂlﬂrﬂﬂ}ll

A
Methermpon a‘,\j."'!-.'-f
Doverote 0 W A Figheldean

R QY

Lalt J“ L~)'I'.||Ist|:||1

.-'"_

s I:!-ullnrl:l

=

s

Eylfur Camg
4. " !

| B -n.._-.._

S x "HB
,:- I'.IIT-hHEtm Krigirion
B3086 M Down
_EShrewtun Larkhllf'%wm
an Str
k ANgEa si,

"".\_-'11'

P’ WAHM NSTER

& nuﬂmhm
1-\."1. E—

r_{ L-..r ﬁ!ﬂlhﬁtll 1'1.:-

b Norton Egﬁnt
Sl Heytesbury

il 'rr
B sﬂfhl
-?,»!_I‘E-r:f'

J d
Chol ﬂlgg_

P ﬂ.?f‘i:'
fnﬁ?” /

ip
Bellinger.~ 4

e g --r
v T
"'.E-'

| f l‘”'

nmrmr\>r

& .. e‘h,m H umngtnn

fj_.;-; THETT :
Lu’ngtndgu
2 Deverill™

‘h \" . W,
:{ﬁ? South
F ) iﬁfmrtmm ,,.f‘—:

\ Al fred s\ L 2
Hafdwayﬂé’/ Etmt'l'lui_ =l

Tower =
E- '
dyncn (- = Stoyrtdi '-‘ib
\ Sinoy ’Ehantun ) ';"‘"J'r :

r’n __',’ﬂ_, Misqrove

N . : _ ":r on Stolir
l'.:uchlmgtun =

R “*”‘Era

=10 TN \( a

rGheriton T

E;.ll::“ IE'."

iriton’:

T N

o

g

e _‘i -'-L

l-’estun
Slurmmterl

rluu/]i
i~ Néwtnn g o

11:120,000

- ﬁ.ﬁ*\ N HEI;IIIFIQ’IDI'H'{:-- \
¥ ", <\

"
e=m==s Highways England Trunk Road |’ ._1%
Y

StMarr :

7/ Wankton A 50

st | I:Imrunll
,f‘ Ii.‘.mgstun e Py
Deyerill

Keysiey Do
N H;nmﬂe

[ Glick!acu
, S6IVICes

Chicklade

“\d ard
G

*-.1 jﬁ’g‘ EIL@HFE

Tl

| - \/\/i|tshire Resilient Network

l.l UIrCang |
Manstm-—

S
f‘? ~

R

"y =
; :agd_\wgphhamphnk A\"IIL'»

e

'\_ o EtJd'_-,}f-F" Mu&dfstun\’ﬂ

-----
i,

183

Sd.!-ﬂﬂ'l'l
. “Hiﬂnndemllﬂ

L
l".-'?H'ﬁ Sheat
Hili

\ West End

= "\.
Mﬁf

4

Beraick

-

.

H- & WirkelBury

Deaniand "E
Woodeutts __ CPASH
S
ixpeniy
O\, Doan Jtandley |

\ y
Hﬂ'ﬁﬂ"" f}’“L Mmd}mgmn \

.y Cheltie

I'lluuklull

rll" Feash y |mhur \
is muur

i\

i © Crown copyrlght and database rlghts 2016 Ordnance Survey 100049050

Wood ~— —

L
-

r.f
Litt &_,udl il

B
fﬂammtmlr. =
— e =

=

i =

<

— Eurmmim

nberlayne
I'ILT
Resimental B adges

WILTGH”* b

pap” %
1.-"i'

] =

Bm ad Bishepstene
E

%
"-nn ..-(' Ahper Ebble 0 F
43? i
. /

"\._

D::mp 59

i "ran Imrrm e,

LY s

1 Clearbuery
s =

.f

i Mo

Upper (73 Jmiﬂ f '

'?'

w:'ﬁtarsl:m '

Ehlaﬂm“ 1
Bl S_m ¥

vl &L‘::.“?f
“’%n B

o,
, r
“-S,

! |
WDndfﬂlls%h

T]{1 .

?ﬂg\\ Blissford

Wallﬂp
A

------

7 E_ {anllsil

I gé g i —g LT
/\ '5 t TEs“ iy
Copythome o,

"W?

1

Bar tie :,r,,p

kP

"

"uﬁeidﬁ:?

SR hqmdiaf’“ .'

- 1

£

o M2 7 (Wb

-

s

; ,I,‘ulg'hh .
il Jf.“é"mmlmme

Earrme e

r-\..-|.-|

k, e —

\ RN
§ TMAN RGOS T,

T ¥

Wl S .
IMoth smnt 1
t-i' p.ru isfont k

P

'\. Farfey
! Mo
Py : ff”’/‘r il
:5} w’ 'r,i-
| Michelmeish j_,!._,f/ i

)
"”:'." 5 Braishhel:
..—-_::-""I_

.f"'"

A ﬂ'
'L‘-artarsi‘ , ’i"'i'"l‘-"It—p"{
Hants ,‘Timmlrr"‘ ,

" Bﬁlhms
ER =\

.ﬂ.hha!swnnd
: ! mhndge ‘-.H,!}
ROMSEY "1l

i
Enl]:i:jlﬂl'l ) N nrth’\_

__| ddesm -
H"'—""‘l
\ ““i':i'; 4?
Lee*
S hni)
I_E:

.

mj
73

: |Ml|

l.h".l't':l
‘iﬂmms

r-

,.r—

f{aimor g
OTTON
iab::iia:_l .-:-' - g

&

i &







Wiltshire Council

~——=————-~_ Where everybody matters

COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

Item Update Actions and recommendations | Who

Date of meeting: 18t March 2016

1. Attendees and apologies

Present: | Gordon King, Jerry Wickham, David Jenkins, Russell Hawker,
Carole King, Francis Morland, Steve Lloyd, Pat Whyte, Alison
Irving, Mike Swabey, Spencer Drinkwater, Kirsty Rose, Liam
Cripps, Charly Chilton. Keith Youngs.

T9 abed

Apologies: | David Howells

2. Notes of last meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting held were agreed at the Deffered to next meeting. Approved
Westbury Area Board meeting on the 10" December 2015. at AB (presented) >
Link can be found at Q
http://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=173&MI (D
d=8941&Ver=4 -
(@R
Q
—
3. Financial Position D
Finance sheet was presented. 3
Remaining £5962 {o)

Allocation of £10320 for next year from 15t April




29 abed

COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

Wiltshire Council

~——=————-~_ Where everybody matters

Any roll over must be commited to schemes.

4, Top 5 Priority Schemes
a) Chantry Court, Chantry Lane, | As a result of amendments to the proposed waiting restrictions, | That the Area Board approves the
Westbury — Pedestrian an on-carriageway footway is no longer recommended in the allocation of £3000 to provide
improvements interest of pedestrian safety. An alternative proposal is to dropped kerbs on Chantry Lane
provide dropped kerbs on Chantry Lane opposite the Chantry
Court entrance/exit and across the Chantry Lane/Church
Street junction to provide an easier crossing route.
b) TInhead Road, Edington — Metrocount undertaken and results attached. 85th%ile speeds | KR to check condition of kerb
concerns re vehicle speeds are 26.6mph. KR recommended that the road edge markings stones.
by the duck pond be renewed and ‘Road Narrows’ warning It is recommended that the Area
signs installed. Board approve the allocation of
£1500.
c) Oldfield Road, Westbury — Traffic Regulation Order documents with TRO team for Area Board to note the update.
proposed waiting restrictions processing. Advert period is likely to be during April 2016.
£1000 advert cost has already been agreed. Implementation
costs are in the region of £500 for lining works and a potential
£800 establishment cost.
d) Bratton Road, Westbury — Pedestrian survey undertaken and feasibility report prepared. To be referred to Westbury Town
Pedestrian Crossing request Council
Area split into 3 zones. Pedestrian figures low
Busiest is zone 3. Prospect square to housing opposite
Figures do not warrant a formal crossing of any kind
Dropped kerb around £3k
Seek clarification from WTC on their contribution. FM to find
out
e) Slag Lane, Westbury — Metrcount undertaken and results attached. 85th%ile speeds it is recommended that the Area

concern re vehicle speeds

are 31.1mph. No injury collisions reported in past 36 months.

Board notes the update and
removes from list.




Wiltshire Council

~——=————-~_ Where everybody matters

COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

5. Other Priority schemes
a) Lower Westbury Road, Bratton | Metrocount undertaken and results attached. 85"%ile speeds It is recommended that the Area
are 26.6mph. Not eligible for community speedwatch. No Board notes the update and
collision history removes from the list
KR suggests parking is a neighbour issue.
o b) Tower Hill, Dilton Marsh Design progressing. Provisionally programmed for construction | Area Board to note the update
) in September 2016. Contractors programme starts 9"
% September. Ringway have agreed this date. Once passed a
o letter drop will commence in village.
w
c) Clivey to Clearwood, Dilton Design progressing. Survey data has now been received and Area Board to note the update
Marsh liaison with utility companies is underway.
KR working on 2 proposals. Not in the ringway programme as
yet.
Designs may not come in on current budget.
KR liaising with utilities. FR requested broadband is
considered.
d) Station Road, Westbury — BBLP have notified that works are complete Area board to note the update
Keep Clear Markings and remove from the list
e) Hawkeridge traffic signal stop | Scheme abandoned at request of parish council following It is recommended that the Area
line amendment resident concerns. Outturn costs of £1000 for Atkins fees. Board agreed that future
abandoned schemes must have a
financial contribution from the
parish council towards any costs
incurred in scheme development.
This item is to be removed from




9 abed

COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

Wiltshire Council

~——=————-~_ Where everybody matters

the list.

f) Emms Lane to Stradbrook Works taking place Friday 18" March Area Board to note the update and
footway barrier remove from list

9) Mane Way, Westbury — Town council have indicated support KR still investigating. Area Board to
additional cycle signing note the update

h) Speeding on Leigh Park near | Community speedwatch area, residents can volunteer. Area Board to note the update
Willoughby Close Metro count requested. Awaiting results.

6. New Requests / Issues

a) Issue 4484 Additional yellow Referred to Westbury Town
lines Spur Road, Westbury Council for consideration.

b) Issue 4448 and 4435 Parking | Advert costs for traffic order £1000. KR to bring options to next | Area board to note the update
at junction of Slag meeting subject to work on other priority schemes
Lane/Station Road

c) Issue 4446 Parking, Bratton Police have had several reports and attended. Deemed notto | Area board to note the update
Road Westbury (nr Cemetry) be parked in a dangerous way.

Is this being operated as a breakers yard? GK to look into.
d) Issue 4445 Vehicles Referred to WTC for

obstructing pedestrian access
to High Street

comment/decision re
bollards/white lining. KR to liaise
with parking services. Area board
to note update



http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/Areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=4484
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/Areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=4448
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/Areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=4345
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/Areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=4446
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/Areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=4445

Wiltshire Council

~——=————-~_ Where everybody matters

COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

e) Issue 4429 Yellow Lines Referred to Westbury Town
Sandalwood Road, Westbury Council for comment.
Leigh Primary School
f) Issue 4318 Yellow lines Eden | Supported by Westbury Town Council. It is recommended that this
Vale Road/Matravers Close becomes one of the top 5 priority
junction schemes
9) Issue 4498 Request for One- KR can go back to the school &
Way system, Springfield Road, remind of the help/solutions
Westbury offered in the past through Taking
o Action on School Journeys. Area
Q board to note.
®
g 7. Other items
a) The Ham — resident concerns | Recent correspondence received by Wiltshire Council was Area board to note — information
re noise and pollution discussed and noted. only.
b)
8. Date of Next Meeting: 22nd July 2016

Westbury Community Area Transport Group
Highways Officer — Kirsty Rose

1. Environmental & Community Implications


http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/Areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=4429
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/Areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=4318
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=4498

Wiltshire Council

~——=————-~_ Where everybody matters

COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

1.1. Environmental and community implications were considered by the CATG during their deliberations. The funding of projects will
contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of environmental, social and community wellbeing in the community area, the extent
and specifics of which will be dependent upon the individual project.

2. Financial Implications
2.1. All decisions must fall within the Highways funding allocated to Westbury Area Board.
2.2. If funding is allocated in line with CATG recommendations outlined in this report, and all relevant 3 party contributions are confirmed,
Westbury Area Board will have a remaining Highways funding balance of £1462

3. Legal Implications
3.1. There are no specific legal implications related to this report.

4. HR Implications
4.1. There are no specific HR implications related to this report.

99 abed

5. Equality and Inclusion Implications
5.1 The schemes recommended to the Area Board will improve road safety for all users of the highway.

6. Safeguarding implications



Wiltsiiire Council

~—————"=>_ Where everybody matters

WILTSHIRE COUNCIL

WESTBURY AREA BOARD
7th April 2016

Westbury community area grants 2015/2016

Purpose of the Report

To update the Westbury Area Board on grant funding applications from 1st
April 2015 through 315t March 2016

Grant funds agreed

Project Amount Award

Project Applicant Cost Awarded date
Mower and shed Bratton Baptist Church £980.00 £980.00 09/04/2015
Display boards Great War Commemoration Gp £990.00 £990.00 09/04/2015
Play Pod Westbury Leigh School £17,300.00 £5,000.00 09/04/2015
Training equipment West Wilts Esprit Gymnastics £10,000.00 £1,000.00 04/06/2015
Improved lighting Edington Ringing Centre £732.00 £732.00 04/06/2015
Team meeting room Bratton Recreation Ground £11,954.00 £5,000.00 04/06/2015
Fairfield Farm College - Post Cllr Lead Cllr Wickham £10,000.00 £5,000.00 06/08/2015
Office

Art Display Westbury Music and Arts Festival £920.00 £920.00 06/08/2015
Kitchen Refurbishment GrassAcres Hall Cllr Hawker Led £6,750.00 £5,000.00 08/10/2015
Scoreboard Replacement Westbury & District Cricket Club £6,780.00 £3,390.00 10/12/2015
Replacement Boiler & Flat Bratton Jubilee Hall Management £13,951.53 £5,000.00 10/12/2015
Roof Committee

Crosspoint Counselling Crosspoint (Westbury) £2,646.00 £1,300.00 10/12/2015
Facilities

Equipment & Tools The Monday Gang £1,000.00 £1,000.00 10/12/2015
New Scrum Sled Westbury Rugby Football Club £2,780.00 £1,390.00 10/12/2015
Dilton Marsh Village Mapping  Dilton Marsh Local History Society £1,000.00 £1,000.00 04/02/2016
Pillar Drill West Wilts Society Of Model Engineers £999.00 £850.00 04/02/2016
Allotment Shed Westbury Shed £957.00 £957.00 04/02/2016
Liam Cripps

Community Engagement Manager: Westbury

Report Author: Liam Cripps

Community Engagement Manager - Westbury
Tel No: 07770975684
E-Mail: liam.cripps@wiltswhire.gov.uk

Page 67






	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	5. Chairman's Announcements
	7. Partner and Community Updates
	Wiltshire Fire & Rescue ServiceWestbury CAB report 14 3 16 (2)
	Local Youth Network Update March 2016
	BA13+ report for April 2016 Area Board
	Healthwatch February
	Healthwatch March
	CCG February
	CCG March

	8. Local Highways Investment Fund 2014-2020
	APPENDIX 1 - Westbury Area Board Highways Major Maintenance 2014 -16 Completed
	APPENDIX 2 - Westbury Area Board Highways Major Maintenance 2016-17 Proposed (2)
	APPENDIX 3 -  Integrated Transport
	APPENDIX 4 - Wiltshire_Resilient_Network

	9. Community Area Transport Group
	10. Westbury Community Area Grants 2015/2016

